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FrRIDAY, T OctopEr, 1910.

The: Deeuty - Speaxer (W. D. Armstrong,
Bsq.; Lockyer) ‘took the chair at half-past
5 o’clock.

DEATH OF KING EDWARD: VIL, ¢
AND ACCESSION - OF - KING
GEORGE. V. =

The DEPUTY SPEAKER: I'have to
sport to the House that I have this day
eceived & letter from: ¥lis Excellency the |

Governor, conveying & despateh from the ¢
| Secratary of State for the Colonies; which &
| I shall now read to the House :— '

: f[Cory.]
¢ Queensland, No. 106.

¢ Colonial Office, Downing street,
¢ 9nd September, 1910,

Majesty the Queeni Mother, for their con: |
gratulations on hiy accession, and for theiz |2
assurances of loyalty to his Throne and
Person. :

| the report “of the motion made by Mn
| Kidston in the Queeunsland Parliament,
which I have not failed to lay before His

Majesty.

¢ § have the honour to be,
Sir,
¢ Your most obedient, humble servant,
“(Sgd.) CREWE. | |

| ¢“ Governor Sir William MacGregor,
“ GFCM.G, CB &e, &ey &e.”

SUPPLY:
RESUMPTION: OF COMMITTEE.
CHIEF SECRETARY’S DEPARTMENT—CHIEF OFFICE.

(Mr. J: Tolmie; Drayton and Toowoombe, im
the chair.)

Queastion stated—That there be granted to
His Majesty, for the services-of the year
1910-11," a. sum nob exceeding £6,725 for ths
¢ Chief Office, Chief Secretary’s. Department’”
—since which it had been proposed that the
vote be reduced by £1 (Mr. Lennon’s amend-
ment).

Question—That the sum of £6,724 only be
granted-— :

Mr. HARDACRE (ZLeichkardt) asked: the
Premier upon :what basig’ invitations: were
sent to members to:accompany the Scottish
Commission to different partsof Queensland?
He did not think: there was any intentional
nieglect ‘on' the part of the Government, but
there did seem to be some neglect shown. It
appeared: to him that undue favour had been
shown to members on the Government side.
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He' might instance the Southern part of the
State. Mr. Ryott Maughan, the senior mem-
ber for: Ipswich; might have beeninvited,
but he was not..- Then take the Central por-
tion of the State. It seemed apparently that
the only one; so far, who had been invited to
accompany  the -~ commission; had  been the
hon: senior member for Rockhampton:  He
thought invitations might have been sent
out to some of the members of the Opposition
in the Central district, as well as other parts
of the State.” He had been asked why he had
not gone with ' the Scottish: Commissioners;
as well as other members, and his reply was;
Tt is manners to wait until you are asked.”
At the same time, his constituents. did ' not
know the reason of his absence, and he would
certainly have’ liked to accomipany the com-
mission: so far as his electoraté wias concerned:
He would be very. pleased indeed to hear from
the Premier what basis was adopted in regard
to: the invitations.

The PREMIER (Hon: W. Kidston, Rock-
Bampton) s He would be:very pleased to give
the'House the very fullest information ag to
the lines ‘adopted in:-regard to the matier.
Hon. - members would “understand “that the
‘essential thing: they should:have in. view in
inviting ‘people to:accompany. those commis-
‘sioners was to ‘get people who knew. some:
thing  about “the' districts, "and  something
about %m industries ‘carried on:in‘the dis-
tricts through which ‘the commissioners were
‘going. :

Mr.. Harpaore: I know something: about
my disbrich

The PREMIER :: He had explained’ the
matter: to. members of the House, whom he
had ‘asked to meet him and discuss the matter,;
quite regardless of whether they supported
the Government or not. That was at a timie

when: he understood that the commissioners:

would only be able to go as far north as
Bundaberg. At that time -he had no- ides
any - of them' were going auy further, and
members representing’ the districts the com-
missioners were likely to visit in the South
were. invited to- discuss—not as to whether
they would go themselves. He (the Premier]
Cplainly told them that he was not wanting
members of Parliament on that job; he was
wanting - farmers and settlers who had suc-
woeded 1n the country themselves to go with
the commissioners and explain how they had
succeeded,’ and how other people could suc-
ceed just as they had done.

‘Mr. Harpacre: Is Ken. Grant a settler of
the Central district?

-Several. other HoNoURABLE MEMBERS inter-
jecting, : .

The PREMIER: Did hon. members want
the "information 7. It  was quite immaterial
to him:(the:Premier), but he was quite will-
ing to give it

My Lennon: Certainly we want the infor-
‘mation:

Mry. . Mureay: We are all in good temper,
you know.

The "PREMIER ;- That was the general
rule adopted in regard to.the invitations so
far as the South was concerned. ' Of course;

it was quite natural that members of Parlia-:

ment should ‘want to accompany important
‘peregrinating parties to their constituency—
it ‘was quite natural, and in somé cages that
‘had been arranged for. . Last Thursday even-
ing he learned that four of those commis:
sioners were willing to go to the Centre and
North, and he made & hurried arrangement
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for them to go:North. . He' asked the member
for Fassifern; who was nearest to him at’ the
time; to take the commissioners through' the
pastoral: districts of the Central, West, and
Northern districts,  as the hon. member was
well acquainted “with. those districts. ' That
hon. member found: he could not very well
g0, ‘and he suggested  that Mr. Ramsay, of
Oondooroo Station, should be asked-—a man
who was ~ thoroughly ~acquainted - with' the
pastoral industry..
Mr. LENNON: A very good man.

The PREMIER: Unfortunately, it hap-
pened - also that Mr. Ramsay could not go,
and it was suggested on Friday or Baturday
morning that he should try and get the Hon.
W. H. Campbell, of the Upper Houss, and,
perhaps, taking him all round, they could
not get- a better man to guide the commis-
sioners and ‘explain the conditiong in the
Central West than Mr. Campbell.  He (the
Premier) also thought he would ' ask Mr.
Hamilton; the member for Gregory, who also
was well' ‘acquainted: with - that = district—
chiefly on its industrial side—he was very
well” acquainted with' the pastoral districts;
but, as the second reading of the Land Bili
Wwas: coming. on; that:hon: ‘member. did not
think it right: for him to . go; as he wanted to
take part in the debate on the second: read-
ing of that: Bill. - He had: then asked Mr.
Payne; the member for Mitchell, but he also
found - it inconvenient to . 'goi . It was not
imperative that he should "ask any other hon.
member. | The hon. member: for Clermont
was not particularly acquainted with: that
industry, and he (the Premier) knew "quite
well that when the hon. miember for Gregory
would ‘not ‘go, because of the Land. Bill, the
hon, - member: for  Leichhardt would have
been greatly shocked if it had been suggested
that he should go.

Mr. HARDAORE : You might have asked me,
anyway.

The "PREMIER : That was the position.
He wanted hon. members to understand that
he wanted to get the men. who: were best
fitted” to explain the business the dommig-
sioners camie here to do:

My, Hagpacee: I am not blaming you.

The PREMIER : 1t was found later that
the commissioners could go. up as far as
Cairns, and he (the Premier) thought it was -
eminently desirable that they should see: the
tropical country under sugar, and the high
tablelands of the: country about "Atherton,
and: it cccurred to him that Mr. Many, the
member. for Cairns, was about the best man
he could get to go with the commissioners,
and as the hon. member was: quite willing' to
¢6, he (the Premier) asked him to go. . He
was very glad that the hon. member had con-
sented to go; because 'he was an excellent
example of ‘what could be done in Queens-
land. FThe honi’member was a sample ‘of -
what & Scotchman could do for himself, even
in“the tropical  districts of Queensland. =~ He
came out here twenty odd:years ago with
nothing: save his: hands: to- help: him, and
now: he was in-a position of independence,
and he’ (the Premier) wanted him to go with
the commisgsioners and explain to those men
what he had done for himself, and ‘what, no
doubt;: “a . large nuiiber of other men in
Cairns-had: done just as well.

Mr. LEsiNA': - Australiang have done it in a

‘shorter. period than that’ I know several.

The ‘PREMIER : The: hon. member for
Cairns was perhaps the best pilot he could

Hon. W. Kidston. |
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got for that district. = (Laughter.) There
was another matter. . When those four men
arrived here at half-past 9 o’clock on' the
Saturday night; he had not seen any of them.
He did nct go to the border to meet them,
and he thought it would be courteous on his
part to meet them on their arrival in Bris-
bane; ‘and he arranged a small private party
to:meet them. W These peoplé were not visite
ing - Brisbane—they ~ were ~only ' travelling
through—and he arranged -a small private
party, consisting of the men travelling with
them and two or three members from either
side of the House, representing the districts
to: which' the commissioners were: going, to
meet them and have just a friendly glass.
He thought at the same $ime that it would
be & very desirable thing if members of Par-
liament should have an opportunity of meet-
ing and. having a chat with those men, so
arrangements had been made for an after-
noon on the ‘ Lucinda,”” to which members
ofboth Houses had ‘been invited, and there
was to be s dinner afterwards.  He would
give further particulars a little later, but in
the mieantime he thought he had  given a
perfectly accurate idea of tho lines that had
been followed. ' He hoped the visit of the
cdommissioners  might be productive of much
good to Queensland.

Mz, Frrricks: The  Federal Government
has done something good in bringing  them
outb.

The PREMIER : He thought the Federal
Government had done some goodi—the  last
Federal ‘Government—though ke would not
have  mentioned it, ‘for the ides was Mr.
Deakin’s—a very ‘good idea—and carried out
by Mr. Fisher.  He Hhoped that neither dur-
ing their visit here nor afterwards would any
indication of party feeling be shown in deal-
ing with those: men or. their mission  here.

HonourABLE MzMBERS: Hear, hear!

The PREMIER: Tt was a matter in which
both sides: had:a' common: interest.
Hoxourasra MeMBERS: Heay, hear!

The PREMIER: And though they might
differ ‘about 2 great many things.they could
agree to. be even friendly in-regard to this
matter: :

Mr.. HARDACRE ‘accepted: the explana-
tion  given by  the Premier, who" had  no
doubt ‘done his best in the time at his dis-
posal.. At the sarme time it was rather an
anomaly that there was nobody representing
the intermediate part of the Central district:
As it-happened, the Land- Bill went through
in time for him to have joined the party;
and even if he could not have gone, he could
have arrarnged for somebody. at Emerald: to
meet: them. - He hoped the mission would be
productive of much good: to Queensland.

Mz, COLLINS: There was an amendment
before the Committes, and he would give it
his: support. He' objected "to. increases “of
salary  to: people  already. -overpaid. = Last
year the ‘Under Secretary got an' increase of
£100, and this year he was down for another
increase of £100, bringing his salary up to

There were ‘nine. persons . in - that
office; and the total amount: of their salaries
was £2.275.  Of that amount the Under Sec-
retary and the chief clerk took: £1,280, leaving
£1,015 for the remaining seven persons.  He
found the same thing all through the depart-
ments. It was representative of our social

system, in which a few individuals took the
bulk of the wealth and the remainder pos-
sessed only a small portion.

[Hon. W. Kidston.

Personally,: he

[ASSEMBLY.]
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had nothing ‘against  the Under- Secretary,
but he objected to increasing the salaries of
highly-paid  officers’ who  already redeived
sufficient | remuneration.  Many people  with
wives ‘and families” got no more than £100
a.-year. -No'doubt the State was prosperous
at the present: time, but that was no reason
for continually . increasing  the ~salaries of
highly-paid: officers. He' thought they ought
to level up the loweripaid officers “before in:
creasinig the salaries of  the ‘higher-paid’ ger-
vants -of ‘the State.  He: was not speaking
against: the' individuals  but. ‘against. the
systerm. . The hon. member for Fassifern said
he thought it was a fairly large increase, and
then he ‘changed his  mirnd.  Maybe there
was no necessity for the hon. member to get
down ' to ' the gutter whers he would meeb
the -common herd-—he had always been in a
position ‘of “affluence. :

Mr. D. Hunrer: Who' are the  common
herd?

Mr. COLLINS: He' (Mr. Collins) belonged
to the common: herd himself.

Mr. Forsyri: Well, speak for yourself.

Mr. COLLINS: He was ready to speak
for: himself. " The Premier said they oughs
to have certain positions which he’ called the
‘“blue ribbon.””: ~Why? :

The' Prreuizr: To encourage the common
herd. - (FHear, hear!)

Mr. COLLINS: The hon. gentleman: should
do something for the common herd. because
they could not all get the blue

[4 p.m.] “ribbon. " There wers only nine
or‘ten’ who could 'get ‘the blue

ribbon’ by becoming ’ Under Secretaries. Tt
did not follow that. the' nine Under Secre-
taries possessed the ability that some people
amade out.w There were 999 people: who had
just as much intelligence as they had. Thay
could only have five or six occupants of the
front: Treasury bench out of the seventy-two
members, but that did not follow that they
represented: the cream- of - the- brains 'of
Queenslarid. - There were better men cubtside.

The PREMIER: Remember what the hen.
member for Fassifern: told you abdut: the
big prize and the good race.

Mr. COLLINS: The  hon. member  for
Fassiforn: veferred  to the  University, and he
said that these high positions would be open
to University students.. . What chance had: a

- poor person: got of getting to the University ?
The childrén who would go to the University
would: be the ‘children of the  higher-paid
officials. They would: therefore have all the
advantages: and get these blue ribbons.  He
was going to oppose the big increases for all
he' was worth until 'such time: as: the under-
paid. persons  throughout the public' service
were levelled up.

Hovw. E. B. - FORREST (Brisbane Narth):
He was one of the' blue ‘ribboners to this
extent-—that he intended to support the in-
crease given - to - the ~Under = Secretary. If
they wanted good men:they must pay them
good " salaries, ‘and  they must offer attrac-
- tions for good-men to come infto the service
and remain there. . That was what his ex-
perience had told him, and it also told him
that ‘unless ‘they paid good salaries they
Woulﬁi not attract gcod men into the service
at alli : :

Mr. Arrex: Provided they make the best
Aise ‘of his services.
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Hown. B B, FORREST: The present
Under Secretary gave a lot of service to the
State and he did it very well, ‘and  £800 was
by -no means a big salary.

M. Forey: What about the mill hands?
The PreMminr: They get good wages.

M. Ferricks: They get £1 5s. a week,
which works out at 44d. per hour.

The  ACTING - CHAIRMAN: Order! I
must ask hon.  members to ' restrain . them-
selves’ from their desire to. interject. - All
interjections = are - disorderly, and  the  excel-
lent. temper of the Committee this afternoon
I hope ‘will continue throughout the day.

Hox. . B. FORREST: He regarded £800
28 by no means & big salary for an appoint-
ment of this'kind. It was only a fair salary,
and.was: considerably under the salaries paid
for “a- similar  position’ in ‘the ‘other: States
of  the Commonwealth—in all the big States,
at. any rate. The Government made a mis-
take ' in not fixing the salaries: of -wll. the
Under: Secretaries at £800 a2 year, and then
there would have been no trouble at all.

Mr. FERRICKS: And yet you voted against
8s. a day for the railway navvies last ‘session:

Hon: E. B, FORREST: The hon. member
who has just sat. down said that nothing had
been given to the common: herd, but if he
looked at ‘page 14 of the Treasurer’s Finan-
cial Statement he would see these words—-

The - members. of the public service; school tesch-
ors, - railway -employees;’ and {the  members of ‘the
Police: Force, have shared in’the prosperity; and
the  amotnts set ‘out in the next table will show

that all branches of -the public: service have duar-

ing: the last seven years: participated o a very

gznﬁidcrable extent in the general prosperity of the
Ao

Branches of the public . service under the

‘Public ::Service - Board 76,500
School  teachers 81,500
Police  Foree i £0729,300
Railway employees -+ 135,200

: £322,500

The ‘adoption’ of “an eight-hour working day in
the railway service in August, 1907-=
that is, three years ago—

Is responsible for:an- additional charge of £30,000
per:annum 1o the State.

Was that not fair treatment. to the public
service? - They 'had: had four . prosperous
years,  and the public service of Queensland
had shared in that. Did that amount not in-
clude  the common ' herd: that  the' hon.
gentleman' referred : to? - Queensland was
growing,  and:they 'would: have:to increase
the salaries: 'still ‘further as the officers had
more important  functions  to. perform,
especially ‘those at the ‘heads of the depart-
ments. . That ‘had been the history of: the
other ‘States; and was: probably ' the - cause
of their paying better salaries for similar
positions. - The Under Secretary had been in
the service for many years, and exhibited:a
peculiar fitness for the position he ‘occupied:
1t was ‘common knowledge that he was
peculiarly fitted for the position he occupied.
It was an absurd statement to make that the
other - Under Secretaries did ten times the
work: hedid.

Mz, Arrens I 'said they had ten times the

responsibility. :
o How. E: B, FORRERST: The hon. member
said ten timies the work; and 1t showed that
in making that statement he did not know
what he was talking ‘about. = As regarded

[7 Ocroméx.]
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big salaries, he had heard members opposite
$ay that no man living can earn £1,000 . a
r.
Mr. Harpaore: No; that is not so.

Hoxn. E. B, FORREST: It was said by
meinbers opposite.  What did: they find now?
Why, the very men who made:those state:
ments were now in Melbourne. . Were they
earning £1,000 a year? No; they were earn-
£2,500 & year,  (Hear, hear! and Govern:
ment laughter.)  That showed that the ideas
of ~‘those  members  with  regard: %o high
salaries must have undergons a tremendous -
change.

Mr.. FPERRIOES: Who fixed the salaries of
members of the Commonwealth Parliament?

How. E. B. FORREST: They did them-
selves, and notwithstanding the extraordinary
high salaries they were paid now they wanted
an increase.

Mr. AtiEN:  No; they did not fix their
salaries. . The. Constitution fixed them:

Hown. E.:B. FORREST: They started: at
£400 a year, and then they raised their salaries
themselves to  £600; and they were not satis-
fied with that, but it was stated that they
intended to raise the amouht to £1.000.

Mr. ArrLen: Who told you that?

The ACTING CHATRMAN: Order! I
must call upon  the hon. member for Bullso
to refrain from interjecting so:frequently:

How. H.. B. FORREST: The members of
the Commonwealth - Parliament. raised their
salaries: by £200:a year, making the amount
£600; and now. they said they could not:live
on £600 & year, and they wanted £1,000 per
annuny, though when' they were  living in
Queensland they were content with the: miser-
able £300 a year paid to members of the As-
sembly. :

Mr, Hamivron: I am not content, anyhow.
(Laughter.)

How. BE. B. FORREST: That showed the
change which had taken place in the ideas of
the “Hon. members opposite with: regard "to:
high ‘salaries.” He ‘asked hon. members: to
look “at the work performed by the Under
Secretary - of “the Chief Secretary’s Depart-
ment and the work performed by those men
in Melbourne, and -say who:was the better
paid.. He intended: to support: the £800: for
Mr: McDermott; and he hoped the Committes
would not hesitate a moment: in passing it

The PREMIER ¢ He did not wish to speak
on_ the question now being - discussed, as he
had spoken' on it before, but simply desired. to
remind hon: meémbers that this was the ninth
day for Supply, and thers were only thirteen
other  days. for the Hstimates. =~ They were
now on the first vote for the Chief Secretary’s
Department; and there were ten more votes in
that- department; ‘some: of which were very
well ‘worth: disoussing. Of course,. members
would divide the time in any way they liked;
he was only pointing out the position:

Mr. HAMILTON did not know whether
this was the proper vlace to refer 'to the ques-
tion of appointing justices of the peace, but
he thought it was, as ‘that was the first: vote
for the department ' which ~dealt. with “the
matter.

Mr. LESINA rose to a point of order, and
asked what was the question before’ the Com-
mittee?

The ACTING CHAIRMAN: The question
is that £6,724 be granted for the ' Chief

- Secretary’s Department—Chief Office.”’

Mr. Lesina.]
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Mr. Hawrmzox: Well, T will bring the
matter up after the anendment is disposed of:
Mr: HARDACRE: Judging from. the obser-

~vations of the hon.  ‘member  for Brisbane

Nozth, that hon. member was entitled tor rank
as an eminent author of: fiction, ‘as he could
draw very . well upon his: imagination. - He
(Mr.: Hardacre) had been a” member of the
House ever: since the inception: of the Labour
party, and he had never heard any member of
the party say that ho ‘man living could earn
£1,000'a year.  The hon. member for Brisbane
North missed the whole point of the amend-
ment. -Members of ‘the Opposition’ were not
objecting to the increase in the salary of the
Under: Secretary on' personal grounds; but
were objecting to what was commionly known
ay “greasing the fat pig,”’ and giving scarcely
any increase: to the lower-paid officials.  The
Under Secretary got an  increase  of £100,
while two ‘messengers, at £120 and £75 re-
spectively, ‘gob only £20 between them, and
two  typists at - £100 each recéived no increase
atall, hat members on that side wanted
was: to’ ses fair: treatment accorded to the
lower-paid officers of the service.

Mr.” LESINA : Apparently. the object of
the leader of the Opposition, in moving that
the vote be reduced by £1, was to give the
Committee an opportunity of expressing their
sentiments with regard to the dispariby. be-
tween the salaries paid to different officers in
the. Chief Secretary’s: Department. - If  the
amendment were carried; he supposed  those
who supported it meant it to be: an indication
to the Government that they were dissatisfied
with' the present method of apportioning in-
creases of salary, ‘and that they wished the
Government to:give increases to the lower-paid
officers; either on the Supplementary Estimates
or: on:next year’s Estimates. : Of ‘course, Go-
vernments very largely did just as they liked,
and it was hardly necessaty to-get an’ expres-
sion of opinion from the Committee:

The :Prumrer:: That has always been a
characteristic: of - (Governments.

Mr.. LESINA: When' they had the power,
they used it to the top of their bent. If a
Government were: backed up’ by :intelligent,
independent supporters, who stood. to their
principlés,” the Goverament. would not. play
fast and loose with public funds or: with politi-
cal principles. It was straight-talking; straight-
voting: ‘supporters “that kept a~ Government
straight. If the Governiment were distribut-
ing public moneys among public servants on
an_unfair basis, 16 was the duty of their sup-
porters: and- not. of the Opposition to. bring
them - to. book.. . Public : servants  generally
worked: against: the TLabous party, and’ why
should they bother themselves as to” whether
public servants were well or ill paid? It was
none- of his - business, except.. on the broad
ground that he believed in paying every man
a fair wage for the work he did.. He believed
that the salaries of Under Secretaries should
be evened  up-—he: had advocated that last
yoar. . They -should 'be paid ‘& standardised
wage; just ‘as workmen  should be paid a

* standardised 'wage. 1 Of course, all classes
should be paid on a properly appraised. value.
He believed every Under Secretary was worth
£800 a year. 1If he was not, then he was not
worth employing. " If the work & man did was

valueless, then he should bé sacked; but they
should sack him in good times; when he’ could
obtain other employment: This was the very
time to prune down a service that was over-
grown, in spite of all the Premier and his
officers had done in that direction.  There

“were many officers whose only work was to

carry bundles of papers from one room to

[#r. Hardacre.
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anocther, dnd now was the time to geb rid of
them; when there were plenty of opportunities
forabsorbing their labour. - If they waited
until ‘& drought came, they would help to re-
duce the price ‘of labour in an already over-
stocked  labour ‘market. . There should be a
standardised ~wage  for Under Secretaries,
and that should be £800 4 year. The time
would come - when: Queensland. would be 'so
big and prosperous that it might be able to
pay. bigger salaries toits Under Secretaries.
Men would: be trained in:the University to
fit. themselves: for those positions. . At present
our Under Secretaries were paid less than was
paid to Under Secretaries in the other States,
although hon: members were always boasting
of the wonderful resources and prosperity of
their own State. They should: also pay the
lower ranks  of the service better salaries.
The: depuby leader of the Opposition had
ddopted a similar course last year, and, as his
advice: had' not -heen: followed in connection
with the preparation of this year's Estimates,
the hon. member felt fully justified in moving
this: reduction ‘of ' £1:  He (Mr. Lesina) felt
justified in voting ' for: the amendment: to
emphasise his dissatisfaction with $he action
of the Government, and that was his only
reason. . He did not disapprove of the increase
to Mr. MoDermott.. He recognised he was
a ‘most valuable officer, who had over thirty
years’ experience in: the sérvice of the State,
and his capacity could not. be overestimated.
He was not actuated by . any: spirit of hos:
tiliby towards Mr. McDermott ot to the policy
of the Government  in standardising  the
salariés of “the Under  Secretaries.  He  was
only supporting the amendment as an indica-
tion: that the lower-paid. men should be paid
larger salaries.

My BOOKER: ' (Maryborough) ~ supported
the increase of salary to the Under Secretary
for a number of reasons.” He had heard no
reasons advanced on’the other side why that
increase should rnot be- given.  He took it
that- the “argument on the. other side was
based on their own. earning power: but that
was not the standard by which Under Secre-
taries should be paid. The salaties of Under
Secretaries should ' be fixed by Parliament and
scheduled, and that would pub dn end to the
annual discussion: of increases. The general
trend of thediscussion’ had been to mix up
the salary of the Under: Secretary of the de-
partment; with' the ‘salary’ paid fo:the office
boy. or the messenger. . In no sense did he
speak in & derogatory manner regarding the
office boy or the messenger; but he contended
that, -as the Under Secretary was ‘the per-
manent head of the department, his salary
should be & guiding star for the best men in
the ‘public’'service; to which they could look
when' they ‘entered: the service. If they paid
their Under Secretaries well, they would get
the best that was in men, and the State wonld
benefit by it.. The present Under: Secretary
in this: department earned: £800 &’ year, and
earned it well, and the State was well' served
in having & man of his capacity in'the posi-
tion. " In arguing against  the 'salary; hon.
members were indirectly arguing against: the
occupant. of . the  position.. The ‘two things
were: inseparable.. It must be intensely de-
rogatory to: the best-interests of ‘the service
when' they found members on the other side;
who. might be' future Ministers, discussing
the salaries of their future Under Secretaries.
It must leave an unpleasant fecling in the
minds of ‘the Under Secretarics; which must
naturally militate against the best interests of
the ‘departments afterwards.. He said that
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My Ryan: That is a serious thing to say.
Mr. MURPHY (Croydon):- He must say
that he would not like to cause any of the
Under: Secretaries any bad feeling, but'what
about -the: poor unfortunate. people at the
bottom of . the tree when these

[4.30 p.mi: ] salaries were being fixedup ? - Did
they have no hurt feelings when

the men who were récelving big salaries got
another increase of - £100 per annum,; while
they wete not brought up by even a paltry
sixpence a day?.  They had heard the story
of the two boys and the apple.  One boy was
eating an' apple, and the other poor little
fellow stood. there  and- kept asking for a
bite: " ‘“No,”” said the greedy chap, “I am
not ‘going: to' give. you a. bite,” and so he
went on - getting rid -of it; and &t last the
‘other kid said; ** What about the-core?’” The
otheér one said, ¢ There ain’t going to be no
core.”” - (Laughter.) That was the position in
fixing up ‘these Hstimates.:: The lower-paid
men: in the sérvice were looking for the core,
but the higher-paid meil in the service said,
“There ain’t going to be no: core.””: Hon.
members were ‘notihere to:say any nasty
things about the Under: Secretaries. because
they got up: and criticised: the increases of
salary.
the Under' Secretaries.

The Premizr: Far better find fault with
the Premier.

Mr.. MURPHY :  Occasionally, one - got
tired of takihg any notice of the Premier at
all. If it ‘was not that the Premier, just by
virtire of ‘an accident, happened to be at the
hesd of something. like thirty-six or thirty-
seven' followers; he: would not: count in the
House at all. - 'There wai & time even in the
Premier’s: ¢areer when he did not-count a
snap of the finger in the House.  The hon.
senior member  for Towngville used to: be
king in ‘thoss ‘days: - He was going to vote
for the reduction; as he did not see why they
should give the Under Secretary of the Chief
Secretary’s Department an increase of £100
again thig year, Lt them do something for
the: lower-paid  servants. . They would hear,
when  they ‘¢ame’ to. the Jome Secretary's
Deépartment; that the police had been: well
treated; but you had only to come in contact
with the police, as well as other: public ser-
vants, to find oub that there was & good deal
of “dissatisfaction in the service, and when
they took up the Hstimates they found that
in every department the man who got a rise
wag the Under Secretary, who had got'a rise
the previous year. In the Chief Secretary’s
Department there was an increase of gome-
thing like £170, of which the Under Secre-
tary got: £100; while the £70 was divided

“amongst the rest: :

My, Forsyrm ;. There is a core, then:

My MURPHY : They might say there was
2. bit.of “a eore, but: the! hon. member for
Moreton might be able to explain: to: ‘the
lower branches of ithe service that 'if they
were not getting the core they were privi-
leged  to. get. & pip.:(Lsughter.)  He was
very glad the leader ‘of the Opposition had

announced his intention  of ‘voting against:

any increases to the Under Secretaries this
year.  He thought they had been fairly paid.
It had been pointed out that in other: States
they were getting paid better than they were
paid. here. That might be so, but during
the: last couple 'of “years: Parliament had
endeavoured, to ~deal as fairly: as possible
with: the higher-paid officers of the service:

[7 Ocronzr,]
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 An HoNOURABLE ' MEmser: You are a bit
husky.

Mr. MURPHY : Ves, he was a bit husky,
becausé he had been sarning his money doing
good work “for the country.. = (Laughter.)
That huskiness would wear away befors half-
past. 107 o’closk: to-night. . (Laughter.)  The
Under. Seeretaries: did not get husky. They
would never see the Under Secretary of:the
department screeching out for the Premier;
it was the messenger that had to jump and
put himself right in the voad of the Premier,
and let the ' Premier’s motoricar 'get ‘over
him sometimes, inthe hope: that the Premier
would be able to-look past the Under Secre-
tary and see the little chayp- at the bottom;
and ‘give him'a rise: " That was one thing
which had always given him a very kindly
feeling towards. the hon. member for- Leich-
hardt. . The hon: gentleman some time ago
was a Minister of the Crown—dertainly only
3’ short period-and what did he do? - The
first thing he did was not to recommend that
the Under Secretary of ‘the Lands Depart-
ment should “get an increasé  of '£100=-ke
went and gave a littlo messenger boy an in-
crease, - and - right - throughout = the  Lands
Department to-day that Minister’s name was
revered.  (Laughter.)

Mr. Murran © Was not the Premier in that
Cabinet? : :

Mz, MURPHY : The Premier might have
been™in: that Cabinet; ‘but he 'was looking
after his own salary at that $ime. - But, of
course, being at the head of the dress-circle
Government, now; he had to see that the men
who were. ina- position to wear dréss: coats
vaceived = increases  of ‘salary:in order. that
they. might be’ able to keep: up the style.
When the Hon\ the: Premier gof a motor-car,
of course, everybody in the higher-paid ranks

-of the public service should be privileged to

have a- motor:car too; but those in the lower
ranks, who built'our: railways,  ‘opened’ up
our dounbry, and- did-all the hard work: for
the State inthe outlying portions; were not
to: receive. any. ¢onsideration at all’ He
thought it was the duty of the party on this
side to try -and help the lower-paid men in
the service before they. voted money to' in-
crease the salaries of those who were already
recelving very fair salaries inded.

How. R. PHILP (Townspille): If the Go-
vernment had: brought in a Bill to- increase
members’  salaries to :£400 & year, he was
quite satisfied that Bill would not have been
defeated.  Queensland was a very big State;
it had not the population it ought to have,
but last yvear the revenue was over £5;000,000.

_ If hon. members went to any:business firmin

Australia which had a: revenue of £5,000,000,
they would find that the-higher 'officers were
paid three or four times the sum ‘the higher-
paid ‘officers of ‘the Queensland  Government
were paid. - He was very glad: there had been
no-personal attack -made  onthe Under Sec-
retary—they were only dealing with the posi-
tion of Undér Secretary.
Howouranry Mavpers: Hear, hear!

Hox. R PHILP: The Under Secretary of
the Chief Secretary’s Department: was the
chief:Under Secretary in the service.

Mr,: Murpaxn: - You. did: without. one," you
know.

Hon:' Ri PHILP: Things were very bad
in-those ‘days,  and. thers Wag & reason- for
it=—he’ gave the salary to the widow. At the
present time. the cotintry ‘was prosperous. and
there had been numbers of rises in all ranks

Hon. B.Philp]
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during - the last five years.. In his time the
country was in'a very bad state, and he was
ashamed because he had to cut down salaries,
but the: Philp ~Government - did: their duty,
and they ‘cut down their own  salaries too:
Queensland could: ~well “afford 'to pay the
Under: Secretary £800 a’ year, as it was a
very: responsible’ position, - The Under Secre-
tary of . the Chief - Secretary’s: Department
ractically “dominated: the whole-Cabinet; as
ﬁe ought to do.. The  Chief Secretary was
responsible for- every Bill brought before the
Houige, and he had to'‘get good advics; and
his Under Secretary must be capable of going
through all - Bills: before they. were brought
before Parliament. - If they could not  afford
o pay  £800 a’ year for -that: position; they
could not’ afford anything at all

Mr. HaArpAorRE: What about the lad porter?

How.: Ri PHILP: He himself had worked
in ‘Brisbane for £20 a. year. - Hverybody had
to make a start.  They could not afford to
give & lad messenger: £3 or B4 a week to
start: with. At one time: any number- of lads
were willing to start-in an office for' nothing
at-all,” but he was very glad that was not. so
to-day. . As.a matber ol fact, a lad golng
through an office was going: through a school,
and very- often he would learn more in an
office than in a  school.: "Any numberiof men
had spent ‘all’ their lives in the Government
service and they  were.fit for nothing: else,
and. they ought to be well paid. As an em-
ployer he liked to see men getting good wages
“ihe always paid good wages, and he liked
to ses the Government pay good wages too.
They paid the Chisf Commissioner for Rail-
ways £2.500 a year, ‘and most people who
knew My, Thallon said he was well worth the
money. The Chief Commissioner in Victoria
got 54,000 & vear, and . yet they only paid
their labourers- 7s. 'a- 'day.  The better the
manab the head of ‘a service the better the.
service was. conducted; ‘and  the better was
the "Government able’ to’ pay: those  in the
lower ‘branches: - They were carrying on ah
enormous business in Queensland,’ and- they
wanted 'good: men: to-see that. the large re-
venue was properly spent,. Nobody who knew
the work could say that the Under Secretary
in the Chief Secretary’s Deparbment was over-
paid at 5800 a year.

Mr: HAMILTON: The hon. member for
Townsville and “the hon. member for Mary-
borough had: argued = from' very  different
premises - altogether to - what - the  Opposition
side had taken wp.  Opposition members had
not argued: that the Under Secretary was
overpaid, but the reduction of £1-was moved
as @ protest against the big iricreases to the
men at the top: and no proportionabe incredse
being given to the men in the lower branches
of the gervice. He quite admitted; as the hon:
senior member for Townsville had stated, they
could ‘not’ start an’office bov on £33 or £4 a
week; but in the lower branches of the publie
service there were men who had been: there
years and years; and - who: had wives: and
tamilies; ‘and they 'were drawing very: small
fserews.”” e 'was speaking to one the other
day, in another department, who had got a
£10 increase; but he wwas still only getting a
little over £100 a year, and he had s wife
and family. The Under Secretary of that
Department got £100 increase last year, and
another £100 increase this year; while the
chief clerk. My  Abell. only eof an increase
of £10. The hon. member for Townsville,
when Premier, had abolished ths offics of
Under Secretary altogether after the death
of :Mr. Dutton ‘

[Hon. B. Philp.
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Hon, R. Puimp: I paid Mrs, Dutton the
salary for some time. - Mr. Stephens took up
the work: o

Mr. BAMILAON : After the death of Mr.
Stephens, Mr. Abell; the chief clerk, did the
worlk, and the hon: member for Townsville
stated at the time' that since  federation-—
since the Customs and Defenice had gone—the
chief ‘clerk :was well "able to cope with 'the
work:

Hon,
times.

My, HAMILTON: admitted they were bad
times. He  believed in paying good - men
good salaries; and he did not think the pub-
[ic servants of Queensland were paid higher
salaries than the public ‘servants in the other
States, and they had quite as good o class of
public servants in’ Queensland ag in any of
the other States.

HoNovusaBLE MeMBERS: Hear, hear!

Mr, HAMILTON :"'What Opposition mem-
bers protested “against was what had been
described by the hon. member for Leichhards
as’ ‘‘ continually greasing  the' fat pig.”” The
man- abt_the top was in constani commiunica:
tion  with the ' Minister, "and  his  case was
always brought under the Minister’s notice,
and: he had a good deal to-'do. with the re-
commending of increases’ to the other’ officers
in his department, and it was a strange coin-
cidence that: the salaries of ‘the Under Seere-
taries were always increased to such an exor-
bitant: extent as compared with others. He
did not: like the remark of the Premier, that
if  hon! 'members insisted on the ireduction,
he would: take' it. off the office boy.

The: PrEMIER: I 'was only joking on'the
subject. - L 'wag' pointing out: it shonld: not
have been - moved on-the general vote, but
ghould have been taken off: one item.

Mr.. HAMILTON : If he thought such  a
thing: as that would happen; he: would  cor-
tainly move the reduction of one: tem.  Cer-
tain: Under Secretaries had received increases
this year, and they deserved such increases,
but they had received :increases out of  all
proportion. to’ the increases ‘given ' o' the
lower-paid. servants. - Nobody . ' could say
that ' this, Under' Secretary had more  work
than the other: Under: Secretaries; some  of
whom did “not geti such high salaries.: It
might be argued that the position:of Under
Secretary to the Chisf Secretary was the blue
ribbon . of the service, and it might be on
that ground  that' he: was getting £100 or
£200, a year  more:than some of the others:
He 'wag: going: to. support the amendment; as
& protest against continual inecreases  to men
in-the higher ranks of the service, while fair
consideration was not shown to men redeiving
lower salaries:

Mr.. LAND: (Balonne) intended #6 support
the amendment as. a protest against continu-
ally: raising the “salaries of ‘the higher-paid
officials’ in "the: different  departments  while
due: consideration  was  not: given to those
in the lower grades, It was hardly necessary
for him'ta refer:to: the: fact that members
in favour of the amendmoent were not attack-
ing the "officers concerned. In this office
there: were two typists, one born in 1853 and
the "other in- 1881. One was appointed in
1898 'and the other in 1900; and they were
gotting only £100 a yvear each. There was
a messenger born in 1883 vetting £125. He
was appointed under the Queensland Govern-
ment in 1908. There was another messengor.

R, Prmp: - They  were very bad

born in 1891 getting £75. THe had been in



Supply.

the service only since 1908 but he was nine:
teen years of age, and if anybody was not
worth ‘more than £75 a year.at that age' he
was: nob worth keeping 1 the service.  He
knew mére about somie of the other Under
Secretaries than about the Under  Secretary
of ‘this department, and he believed some of
them ‘were worth more than they got. He
would like the Chief Secretary to give some
information about: the item ‘“Incidentals and
Miscellansous  Hxpenses,” for  ‘which  £2,000
was. voted last year and £3,000 was required
this year:

Mr.. MACARTNEY (Brisbane. North): To
some . extent he felt inclined to sympathise with
the  references. to increases being
[5'p.m.] given to  the  more: highly-paid
officers, but he  did not intend
to - vote. for the amendment.
Under - Secretary - was  concerned,  he would
rather vobe: for: the increase to that officer
than ‘otherwise, because: he believed him' to
have the best possible qualifications for the
office: " The-position had been referred to as
the' blue: ribbon of ‘the: 'service. - There ‘were
many branchies of the: service where the staff
had - no possible chance: of -attaining to the
position of “Under Secretaries—the officers of
Parliament, for instance.  He thought Under
Secretaries were - fortunate  in being: closely
associated with the Ministers.” Fle recognised
that there must be a certain’ relationship be-
tween o Minister and his. Under Secretary
~itcould not be otherwise; and it was only
natural” that a’ Minister would. do what. he
could” for his Under Secretary. That was an
opportunity ‘that was not extended to other
employees- in: the Governmment: service, ‘and
it was for that reason that the administration
of .the service should be delegated to a board
who: would ‘work -on level lines for: all.  He
agreed with his’ colleague, Mr. Forrest, that
increases had: been given to many . of the
juniors. in'the service  during the: last few
years-to & large amount, but at the same
time he could not get:away from ‘the fact
that - there was  still “room:: for:disappoint-
ment.They - had a discussion - during the
parliamentary vote  about  the recommenda-
Hons' of the Speaker -and' President  of the
Legislative Council being too lightly regarded
by Ministers  in’ considering  the Hstimates.
Holding the views he did as to the adminis-
tration of the service gensrally, it led him
to agree with the comments made in regard
to. the increases in the salaries of the Under
Seeretaries. - He: did ‘not say that the Under
Chief Secrefary had less Important work than
the other Under Secretaries.  He had work of
a most delicate and difficult nature to attend
to.” "He was not, prepared to say that £800 &
year wag too much for the position; or even
that it was not: ‘worth. more.: In deference
to the views he held; he fels bound to make
those remarks:

Mr: RYAN (Barcoo) supported: the amend-
mient. -There was: nothing at  all persona
to the accupant of:the position in what he
had to say; as, so far ds he knew him. he
was & capable and competent Under Secretary.
He reépudiated the:suggestion made by the
junior member for Maryborough, Mr. Booker,
that they could not disassociate the occupant
of the position from the amendment to reduce
his salary by £1.. He regretted to hear that hon.
member: say that, in the event of the Labour
party cominginto’ power, the remarks they
made: in the House would necessarily remain i
the minds of the Under Secretaries; and would
niot tend to the good business of the country:
The hon. member for Maryborough was using

[7 Ocroner.]
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a two-edged sword.  He did not know whether
the ‘hon. meémber suggested it as. a reason
that the Labour party-should not come into
power, or whether they would deal with the
Under Secretaries if they did: ' He did" not
think that, even if the Labour: party came into
power; it - would lead to any friction between
the Under Secretaries and themselves because
of their remarks in the House.  (Hear; hear!)
His. reasons  for  supporting: the amendment
were—first, 'as other speakers 'said; that the
increéases to the: lower-paid officials were motb
proportionate. to- the increase in the salary
of the Under Secretary. It was the disparity
of treatment.

Mr: Waire: The lower officials ‘are fairly
well paid in this department.

Mr; RYAN: That might be the hon. mem-
ber’s opinion.’ . Another reason he had: for
supporting - the ‘amendment: was -because’ of
a matter which pertained more to the Premier
than to the Under Secretary, and that was
the manner in which the communigations ‘of
the Agent-General, in his capacity in’relation
to the Savings Bank (Securities). Act of 1895;
weré dealt with. Those communications should
be mads to Parliament and not to any depart-
ment. - He would read the statutes bearing on
the matter, and commend them to hon. mem-
bers. . Section 6 of the Savings Bank Act of
1870 read—

. The-Auditor-General shall half:yearly on o¥:immie-
diately after the thirtieth day. of June and the
thirty-first - day - of ' Deécember. of ~esch  year duly
inspect count and audit the Government debentures
and  Treasury: Bills: held in trust: ag aforesaid for
thie Government: Savings: Bank ‘and ‘also: ascertain
that the residue of the said moneys including such

<of the same. ag: shall. necessarily ~remain in.the

hands of the Colonisl Treasurer to the credit of an
open: account in the manner hereinbefore mentioned
is invested in accordance with the provisions of this
Actiand make & special report:of eschisuchiaudits
And:isuoh - report Sshall’ within' seven days. after
the making thereof if Parliament be: sitting and if
Parliament be not sitting then within seven days
after the next sithing of Parliament be laid before
both Housges of Parliament.

That was a duty cast upon the Auditor-General
by the: Act of .1870: - Then section 11 of the
Savings: Bank' (Securities) Act of 1895 read
as follows:— :

The Governor in Council may empowor-the Agent-~
General ‘of the colomy. for:the time béing, o siuch
other agent or agents ag the Governor. in Council
may appoint, or any: one or more of them, to:dis:
charge; in- relation  to - Government  secturities de-
posited wader the authority “of this-Act at -any
places beyond the limits of the colony, sich of the
duties which are by séction six of the principal Act
imposed upon the Avdditor-General as the Gevernonr
in Council ‘may- direct: - g

And ‘with respect to such duties the sctd of the
Agent-General, ‘or such' ¢ther agent: or agents as
aforesaid, shall have the same force and -effect as.
if done by the Auditor-Generak :

Certain - duties were cast upon the Auditor-
General by ‘section 6 of the: principal Act;
and - section 11 :of the 1895 Act empowered
the  Governor in. Council to  delegate  those
duties to the Agent-General in England, and,
in that capacity, the Agent-General acted as
if ‘he were the Auditor-General, and his re-
ports had to be laid before Parliament. = And
the proper conduit for laying these reports
before Parliament was through the  Speaker
of ‘the House and through the President of
the Legislative Council. = The Agent-General
was an officer of Parliament.

The Premigr Who said so? :
Mr. RYAN: I say so.  (Hear, hear!)
Mr. HARDAORE: The Act says so.

Mr. Byan.]
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Me. RYAN<: He said so on the authority

«of thé sections which he: had: just read. In

so far as the Agent-General represented the
Auditor-General under section 11 of the Act
of 1885, to that extent the Agent-General was
an officer of Parliament, and not an officer of
the' Chief Secretary’s Department  at  all.
(Hear; hear!) ~ He maintained that the atti-

tude’ taken  up by Sir Arthur Morgan, with

regard to the action of the Chief Secretary’s
Department, was: absolutely justified, and he
would ask the patience of the Committee
while he read the correspondence on the sub-
ject, which was published in the Zelegraph
of  Thursday evening, 29th September,” 1910:
The: first - letter  was from the Clerk of ' the

JLisgislative  Council: to the "Agent-General in

London; and read as follows:ic
Brisbane; 20th August; 1909;

Sir;—By .directionof the Presiding 'Chairman, I
have the 'honour: to acknowledge receipt  of your
report; dated  the 7th :July last; wpon Government
securities held -on-gccount of, ‘or in trust for; ‘the
Goverament Yavings Bank 'and deposited in Lon-
«don under - the “authority ~of 'the  Savings  Bank
(Sécurities) Act- of 1895.

Tam further directed to state that your letter was
trangmitted . through the. Chief Fecretary’s’ Office,
which: appears to: be & most uznusual proceeding.

Speaker has been forwarded direct to them, and
I am to request that tlhe practice formerly observed
will be again resumed.
I have, eto.;
Cuas. W. CosTIN,

Clerk of the Legislative - Council.

The ~Agent-General,  Marble. Hall, . the - Strand;
London,

The next communication was a letter from’ Sir
Arthur Morgan, President of the Counecil;, to
the “Agent-General; and was as follows:—=

Brisbane; 12th: February 1910,

Sir;—L beg to acknowledge: receipt, through' the
Chief Secretary’s. Office, of your:letter of the: 5th
ultimo.

A similar letter 'was received ‘somie time ago
through :the  same: channel, ‘and the  Clérk,” inm
acknowiedging it, by my. direction,: expressed  the
‘opinion: that. such: communications: should: be sent
to: the ‘President direct instesd of through. the
Chief Secretary’s: Office.

Such communications were formerly’ sent. direct
to the President of the Legislative Council and the
Speaker ofithe Legislative - Assembly, and as that
practice  was ¢learly in dccordance with the inten-
tion: of the Savings. Bank “Aoct- of 1870 and the
Savings Bank' (Securities) Act of 1835, T frust that
in:future; the course previously: observed will be
reverted to.

I have, ete.,
ARTHUR MORGAN,
President.
‘The Agent-Greneral ' for: Queensland,  Marble Hall,
409 and 410 Strand, London W.C.

Then there was a letter from the Under Sec-

retary of the Chief Secretary’s Department to
the President of the Council, as’ follows
Chief Seoretary’s Office,
K Brisbane, 18th - May, 1910.

Sir,—Adverting to the letter which on the: 12th
February last you addreéssed to the Agent-General
-on the subject of his half-yearly reports on Savings
Bank pecurities, and which has been forwarded to
this office for advice; X have the Honour, by direc-
tion,: to inform' you that if you have any instruc-
tion: to convey to any: officer of this department,
it would be advisable for you to communicate with
him “through' this office, ds all officers  of the
lepartnient have been directed to comply only with
guch instructions” ag: they receive from' the Chief
Beeretary.

T have;ete.,
P J. McDERMOTT,
Under, Secretary.
The Honourable the  President of ‘the  Legislative
Couneil,’ Brishane:

The ACTING . CHAIRMAN = intimated

that the hon. member’s time has expired.

[Mr. Byan.
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The  PREMIER : Mr. Tolmis; I shall—-
Mr. HaRDACRE: | Liet the hon. member for
Barcoo finish his statement: -

The PrmMiEr: I have mnot the slightest
objection.

Mr. RYAN: He was not laying the blame
for this- matter at the door of the Under
Secretary.. The Premier was no doubt quite
prepared to take the full responsibility of it

The PremiEr: The full responsibility.

Mr. RYAN: Under the Savings Bank Act
of 1870 and the Savings Bank (Securities) Act
of 1895, the Agent-General, when: appointed
to’ this. position in- London; was to that ex:
tent an ‘officer: of - Parliament.

My, Forsyru: Who 'appoints him?

M. ' RYAN:The: Governor: in  Council
appointed. him; and probably thé Governor
in - Council " appointed. the Auditor-General,
but once the Agent-General  was  appointed
to that ‘position he’ was an: officer: of Parlia-
ment to the extent mentioned in. the section
quoted:. . He was not an’officer of the Chief
Secretary’s Department at all to that extent.
As Agent-Goneral he was no doubt an officer
of the Chief Secretary’s Department, but in
his capacity under section 11 of the Bavings
Bank (Securities)  Act he was. not an official
of . that =~ department. The . Governor in
Council might appoint somebody else to that

“position: in- Liondon, and could the Minister

then say: that such: person. was therefore an
officer of :the Chief Seeretary’s: Department?
The principle underlying this matter: was that
reports-of - this ‘kind - should come to ' Parlia-
ment.  without. “the  intervention = of " any
Minister, and: here 'they had the Chief Secre-
tary intervening and diverting  the: reports
of the - Agent-General;  in his capacity.  of
Auditor-General,” from the President of the
Council and the Speaker of the Assembly
to his own department.  That was a matter
which ought to engage the serious attention
of every member of the House, :irrespective
of what party he belonged to.

Mr.. BrRENNAN: Do you think those. reports
should go to the President and Speaker as
executive heads of the two Houses of Parlia-
ment, and not as trustees under the Savings
Bank (Securities) Act?

Mr.- RYAN: He thought those  reports
should ‘go to them' in: their capacities: as
President and Speaker réspectively,  He was
glad the hon. member had raised that ques:
tion, because it was' a' moot point.  He would
read the ' latter part of = section’ 6. .0of :the
Savings Baunk' Act of 1870 :
and  such report shall within seven. days “after the
mrking thereof it Parliament bs sitting and if Parlis:
ment be not sitting then within seven days after the
next sitting of Parliament be laid before both Housesof
Parliament.

The- President and Speaker received the: re-
ports in their  official capacity as officérs. of
Parliament, and then laid them: before ‘both
Houses.. - There was no authority for the re-
ports going' to the Chief Secretary’s Depart-
ment. - The sending ~of: the  reports: there
opened. ‘the  door to all sorts of abuses. It
should "not. be placed "in: the power of any
Minister to direct that those reports should
gos o himself:  The Premier arrogated fo
himself: a;'position that Parliament never con-
templated: - The position was a very serious
one, particularly - when they had a gentle-
man of ‘the ‘standing and ocapacity of Sir
Arthur Morgan drawing attention to it as
he no doubt did from a sense of duty. For

that reason he was poing to support the
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smendment for reducing the salary by £1.
In doing - that “he Hhad: absolutely nothing
agains the present occupant of the office of
. Undsr . Secretary, . whom. he considered- a
very capable officer.

The PREMIER : There was an amendment
bofore the Commitiee, and if that amendment
was o be considered as a vote of censure on
the Chief Secretary it was legitimate to bring
up this matter under it.

Mr. Lastva: Do you regard it as a vobe
of ‘censure?

The PREMIER: Yes; he regarded it as a '

very ‘sericus. vote of censure,

. Mpr, RYaN: So do I it is a very serious
thing: .

The PREMIER: It was a very serious
thing, but he was rather surprised at the
lack of interest in the matter previously mani-
fosted by the hon. member for Barcoo. It
was rather a singular thing that there was
absolutely mo  justification: for: the attitude
that hon. member took up--that this was
done because he (M. Kidston), ‘as Minister,
might interfere with the report.

Mr. Ryav: T .did not say that.

The PREMIER : On the contrary, the very
attitude which  the hon. member: took up—
that such’ report should not go ‘through the
ersons. interested-—was exactly the reason vhy
6 changed the custom: that had been pre-
viously followed. It was of no consequence
$o- hir or. to any. Chief Secretary whether
the' Speaker or some other: person laid this
sheet of - paper on. the table:.  Some hon.
members might have looked up the report to
see what ‘it was. - It was of no' consequence
whatever who laid it before Parliament.

My Ryan i It might open the  door - to
abuse. :

The PREMIER . No; the alteration was
made to close thie door against any possible
abuse—a- very remote possibility, he ad-
mitted.” The section of the Audit Act would
show the duty laid on the Auditor-General
coneerning his annual report.
“mhe Aunditor-General shall transmit the same—

That was his annual report upon the finances
of the State—

togethar with the annual statemenst aforesaid;, to both
Houses of Parliament.

The only way he could do that wag through
the President and Mr. Speaker.  'Why was
the "Auditor-General not to transmit his re-
port through some Minister = For the ex-
cellent veason: that: he was dealing with the
intromissions of  Ministers' for-the year, and
it would be-quite improper’ that his report
should be sent to any: Minister to lay: before
Parliament. Parliament had therefore been
very careful to instruct the Auditor-General
in that case to send his report direct to Par-
Hament.In vegard to the report upon
Governiment "Savings  Bank  securities, the
phiraseclogy of the statute was quite different.
Those  sécurities stood 'in the name of the
President and Mr. Speaker as trustees of the

Savings Bavnk, "and the only persons who:
could authorise their sale were the President

and Speaker, whose property they were. All
that- the  Auditor-General “had to do with
them was to’ count the ‘sécurities every: six
months, and certify that they were all there.
Now, did it not occur- to the hon. member
for® Barcoo that the very worst: persons to

send ‘such a report to were the President and -

[7-O0TOBER.]

It provided— -

“to the Chief Secretary’s: Deépartment:
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Speaker, for the very same reason that he
did ‘not send his report upon the Treasury
accounts through thie Treasurer?

My RYaAN i Buf he hag to send it through:
them as the officers of Parliament.

The PREMIER: Here was the report in
question’ (holding up paper)—simply a sheet:
of paper.

Mr, Ryax: To whom is it addressed?

The PREMIER : To. the Chief Seoretary..

He would ‘explain why the change was made.
The phraseology in regard to the report to
be made in respect of these securities was.
quite different from the phraseology in' con-
nection” with the report on the Treasury ac-
counts.  The section read—
and’ such report shall within seven  days after the
making thereof if Parhiament be sitting and if Parlia-
ment be not sitting then within seven days after the
pext sitting ot Farliamient be laid before both Houses of
Parlinment.
It-did not give him specific instructions, as
it did in the: other case; that h¢ must trans-
mit- hig' report to both' Houses - of - Par-
lisment. = I simply provided that it should
be. laid befors both Houses of  Parliament.
The report: was not a report: by the ‘Audifor-
General at all. 1t ‘was a report by an officer:
appointed by the Governor in Council fo
make an examination.  That officer was the:
‘Agent-Genséral.: A year or more ago he (Mr:
Kidston): found that some departmental in-
convenience: had resulted from different de-
partments and’ differént: men: in’ Queensland
sending instructions to the ‘Agent-Generalin
London to do this thing or that thing. . The:
only way in which they could get systematic
business carried on was that a man should
have only one boss.: The Agent-General should
only have one boss. :

Mr. Ryax: Supposing somebody had: been:
appointed other than the Agent-General,.
Wbt(})ln?l would he have had to communicate
with ?

The PREMIER : He would tell’ the hon:
member how this came about.. He caused
instructions to be sent to the Agent-General,
and he advised the departments here that,
when they had any instructions to: send to-
the Agent-General, they were to send them
through the Chief Secretary’s Department,.
so that the Agent-General would know whorm
he had to deal with, and to whom he was.
responsible. The practice of sending these
reports to the President and Speaker, who-
owned the property reported upon;: a8 trus-
tees, had been going on for years: In accord-
ance. with' the instructions: whieh ‘had: been
sent to the Agent-General, he sent the report
The-
instructions had no-reference to this report:
He (Mr.Kidston) ‘mever thought anything -
aboub it in connection with: the instructions.
He thought the veport when it arrived was
sent: on' by the department to the President .
and My Speaker. Instead of “complaining
to the Chief Secretary’s ‘Department abouf
something that the Agent-General—an officer
of that department—had done, - the Presi-
dent and Speaker wrote to the Agent-Gene- -
ral;giving: him - instructions. what to do;
and: the Agent-General wrote out and told '
the Chief Secretary’s: Department.

Mr. RyAN i Not as Agent-General.

The PREMIER: Yes, as Agent-General--"
as an appointee of the Governor in Council
forthis special  work. The Agent-General
told:the: department what he had been: in-
structed to.do; and the department wrote to:

Hon. W. Kidston. ]
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the' President and ' Speaker; advising them
that; when they had any instructions to give
to -any :officer of the department; to give
~ them through the- department.. That - was
ordinary sound business. = They  then com:
plained that the papers had been sent to the
department instead of to them, and it was
only then that he went into the matter to
ascertain’ what had been done; and he found
that ‘the previous practice was a bad prac-
tice, just as it would be a bad practice for
the Auditor-General to send his annual rve-
port on the finances of the year to the Pre-
mier asking him to present it o Parliament.
Me. Rvan: The President and Speaker ave
not-the only trustees. Are there not three?

The 'PREMIKR: Ves. The Tressurer
was one.  He claimed that, in accordance
with the Act, the trustees who could give
instructions to dispose of those securities
were not the proper persons to whom $o send
the report.

My, Hampacre: Why' should the Agent
General ‘send a report about one person’s
broperty to someone else?

The PREMIER: The property: was not
theirs in a personal sense.. It was the pro-
: %erty of - Parliament, - but ' thig
[5.30p.m.7 House had put it in trust in the
hands of the Hon. the President
and Speaker and Treasurer, and wanted to
know  what they were. doing with 'it; and it
would be foolish to get the report as to what
had been done through them.  The thing was
1o get it through the head 'of the depariment,
who happened to be the leader of the House.
because ‘the Chief Secretary was that—he
was in immediate communication” with this
House, and had no interestmi

Mr. CorsEr: No control over the fund.

The PREMIER: And had no dontrol over
the fund.” The Chief Scecretary could not
dispose of those securities.

Mr. RYAN: To whom does the Auditor-
General report under section 67- He hag to
make a report: half-yearly similar to the re-
port that the "Agent-General made.

The: PREMIER : He should send it o the
Chief  Secretary.” He gave  instructions that
all reports that had the general direction that
they: wers to. be laid before Parliament, when
they were not dealing with the intromissions of
Ministers, should be: sent to the head of the
department: to which' the Agent-General be-
longed. . They were  different entirely from
the annual report of the Auditor-General.

Mr. RYAN: I am, not speaking of the annual
report of the Auditor-General:

The PREMIER : He wanted to show what -«

The reason’ why: Parlia-
ment . gave . specific - instructions  to. . the
Auditor-General - not. to .send" his  report
through  Ministers; but  to send it direct to
Parliament,. was- just: because  the Auditor-
General was dealing with the actions of Minis-
ters; and it was not good to have his report
to. come through  their hands. - On the same
grounds, there was no specific injunction’ to
the Auditor-General or to the Agent-General
that ‘he :should  send- that ' report direct to
Parliament; and to send it direct to Parlia-
ment meant putting: it through the hands of
the only persons who could sell the securities.

Mr. Ryan: To whom ' ig" the - Auditor-
General’s report, under section 6 of the Act
of 1870, addressed?

The PREMIER: The Chief Secretary:
He reported in accordance with the instric-
tions of Parliament, but the Auditor-General

[Hon. W. Kidston.

the difference was.

[ASSEMBLY.|

~claimed that the man ~who ‘had
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—except by means: of a certain style which
was not considered an official way to do such
a thing—the Auditor-General sent his report
through : the ‘head of his departiment; - who
could lay it before Parliament.

Mr. Ryan: Who is the head?

The  PREMIER: The  Chief  Secretary.
This was a little storm in a teacup.

Mr: Warre: A little paragraph in the
Telegraph ;- that is the trouble.

The PREMIER : He 'admitted that: there
was al important thing underlying this. He:
been in~
structed  to report to: the general master
shiould not, 1f possible, send his ¥éport to the
man whose intromissions. he ‘had  been: re-
porting. He thought that was a good sound
principle, and if hon. ‘members would take
the  trouble  afterwards to ' look' this matter
up, . they would find the statutory provisiors
concerning * which the -~ Auditor-General  re-
ported, and for which the President and the
Bpeaker and  Treasurer were: trustees; were
quite  different  from the specific  instruction
that “was ‘given the ~Auditor-General  con-
cerning. his annual “reports;  and’ the reason
why these specific instructions ‘were given fo
him concerning his annual report he-had ex:
plained to hon. members. He thought it was
the intention of Parliament that the Auditor:
General or anyone reporting should not send
his report to Parliament through: the hands of
the man whose intromissions he was reporting;

Mr. HaArpacrr: Why did the Act specifi-
cally ' add . the  precaution  that it must’ be
tabled within seven ‘days unless it recognised
that 16 was to- him: through' whom it should
be. sent?

The: PREMIER " He did: not’ wani: hon.
members: to miss the point that the wording
of the provision that these reports should be
laid upon the table of the House was a quite
different; instruction  from . that  which ' was
given to the Auditor-General concerning his
annual report, and the reason for the specific
injunction in- regard to his annual report he
had already explained to the Committee.

Mr. RYAN: There was a good deal of com-

“munication between the  Treasurer and  the

Auditor-General.

The PREMIER: There  were other: two
letters ‘which the hon. meémber had not read,
although they bad been:laid upon the table
of the Council and had been printed; but zg

" the matter had “been brought up he might

say - that #he  thought: the right thing Fad
been done; and-the ~mere accident of - the
Agent-General  sending them to other officers
instead of - the. President. and Speaker had
caused them to' correct a mistake: that had
been made for many years formerly.  He did
not ‘suppose there was much:in. it, but the
right way was the right way, and it was the
best way of carrying on public busihess that
one’ person should be- responsible. for every-
thing that was done in his office. He thought
the hon. member for Barcoo, if he looked up
the Act, would see that he (the Premier) had
good reason for acting as he did:

Mr. HARDACRE: Mr: Tolmisi

The ACTING CHAIRMANG: Order!  The
hon. ‘member - cannot speak again.. He spoke
at 3.14, 8.52; and 4.15;

Mr. HARDACRE: That was so—he spoke
twice on the main question;.and once on the
amendment: :

THe ACTING  CHAIRMAN: I would
remind the hon. member that the amendment
was proposed on 30th September.
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Mr. ‘COLLINS said: the Chief Secretary
had given no reasons why-the Under: Secre-
tary’s salary should be increased.. He' found
that in the State of Victoria, with a- total
expenditure of  a little’ over- £8,000,000, they
did " mot pay. their  Under - Secretaries  any
greater salaries than what were proposed to
be paid ‘here, with an expenditure of a little
over £5,000,000.. The Under Secretary  to
the Chief : Secretary in. Victoria  got: £800 a
year. .

The Prevrzr: That is little Victoria,

Mr.COLLINS:  He  knew Victoria very
well, and. he knew the revenue. of Vigtoria
was £8,116,000 - yeéar, and he also knew

that® the' revenne of Quesnsland had not yet -

- reached that figure.
Mr. Corsgr: That is not the point.

My COLLINS: The point: was that the
polies ‘were  under: the " Chief Secretary’s
Department: in- Victoria; and therefore he had
a right to sssame’ thab the Under Secretary
would have & far greater amount of work to
do  than the Under: Secretary to the: Chief
Secretary’s  Department in Queensland.

Mzx. CorsERr:; Victoria has o smaller ares.

Mr. COLLINS: On the basis of that argu-
ment, becatse he' (Mr: Collins) represented a
far larger ‘area than' the hon. member, hse
should ‘get a very much ‘larger salary.  The
Under Secretary to' the: Minister for Hxternal
Affairs for the Commonwealth: received £900
a-year. He mentioned those figures because
it 'had been' stated by interjection that the
other States paid far larger amounts to their
Under: Secretaries.
©" Mr. Forsyrs: What 'do they get in New
South' Wales?

Mr. COLLINS: New  South Wales paid
£1,000 5 year to- its. Under Secretary to-the
Colonia} ' Secretary, - but he would point oub
that  New' South Wales had three: times the
population: of ' Queensiand.  -He did. not  wish
to: labour the point, ‘but he wanted to know
from the Premier why those large: increases
had been given.
~ On several HONOURABLE MEMBERS interject-
mg, :
The - ACTING CHAIRMAN said: Order,
order!. I have before stated that interjections
are exceedingly disorderly; and I must ask
hon. members to refrain from making them.
T would also ask hon. members to address the
Chair; as:I am very: jealous in that respect.
(Hear, hear ! and laughter.) :

Mr. COLLINS: He did not say anything
about- the  personality - of the Under Secre-
taries—he was speaking against the system of
giving an intrease to the Under Secretaries
of 8100 this year after having given them an
increase of £100 last year.: Why had not the
-messengers and: clerks, who were not receiv-
ing a' living wage, received: increases?  He
noticed one:clerk got £200, another £170; two
typists at £100, a messenger at £120, and one
at: £75.

The PrEMiEzr: I think the wages are very
fair.” So do the men who get them.

Mr. COLLINS: He had not consulted the
men, and ‘did not know any of them. The
Premier cousidered the men were well paid;
and that they thought: so.  Was it necessary
for a public servant to approach the head of
the department and ask for an inecrease?  Did
the Under Secretaries ask for an increase?

The Premirr: No.

Mr. COLLINS: If it ‘was @ wise thing to
give the Under Secretary an increase with-

{7 Ocroprr.]
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out him asking for it, was it not a fair thing
to: give those under the Under Secretary in-
creases? .

The PreMIEgR: They also got an increase
without  asking for it

Mr. COLLINS: The increase was not pro-
portionate.

Mr. FORSYTH (Mor¢ton):  The reasons
given' by the hon. member for: an increase
or & decrease  were  absolutely - wonderful:
The hon. member stated that the revenue in
Victoria was over. £8,000,000, while in Queens:
land: the revenue  was only £5,000.000; and,
therefore, why should’® Queensland pay more?
New: South Wales paid theit Under  Secre:

‘tary £1,000 as against- £800 in Victoria, and

the’ hon. member argued that, because the
revenue in New. South Wales 'was double. the
revenue: of - Victoria, - the Under Secretary
should . get  double fhe salatry. = Queensland
had® some Under ' Secretaries ' who had ' in-
finitely - more work to. do in connection with
their: departments’ than any Under Secre-
taries in either New South Wales or Victoria:
The - Under Secretary of the Chief Secretary’s
Department got an increass of £100 last yeas
and dnother 100 this year, and if that wae
to continue 1t would be a very wrong thing;
and - he  (Mr.: Forsyth)  would 'vote against
such 'a thing continuing.  Some few  years
ago,. when Queensland was not: as prosperons
a3 she was to-day, it was understood that the
highest salary ‘an.Under Secretary could: get
was B700. -That applied to:all:“the Under
Secretaries ' except. Mr. Brady, who was' 'a
professional man, and who gob 3 little ore.
The salary for the position now was fixed at
£800 a year, 'and those Under Secretaries
who “were- receiving that salary would ot
get an increase for:a number of “years.
The PrREMIER: Perhaps' never.

Mr. FORSYTH : In any case for a consider-
able: number of years there would be no in-
creases to Under: Secretaries, while the men
under themn would be getting increases all the
time.. - Hon: members: might as well argue
that-because a man got: £20 this year, £20
next- year, and £20° the following year, and
the Under Secretary nothing at all, he was
being very badly treated: That was a rotten
argument. - If ' he found the: Government
giving increases next year on the’ same basis,
or anything like the same basis,- he would be
dead against; it,- because it would be unfair.

Mr: MavY: What guarantes have we: for
that?

Mr. FORSYTH : There was no . guarantee
ab all.' After’ all, if ‘they paid a good salary
they would get good loyal work: - Hon. mem-
bers opposite seemed to: think that nobody
looked after :the  interests of. the ‘working
mern  except  themselves.  TH. was = always;
¢ Why: don’t you give the messenger boy who
is getbing Bs. a week an increase?’ He would
point out that during  the: last  four  years
between £300,000 : and = £400,000 ~had - been
given: to the public servants, 90 per cent. of
which had gone to the lower grades.

Mr. Corring: How much would it amount
to per -head?

Mr., FORSYTH: He -had never gone into
the figures as to what it would amount to per
head. He was ‘going to vote against the
amendment..  One hon. member. had men-
tioned. Mr.  Abell, who' was entitled to more
than s £10 rise.  He had been in the service
about thirty years, and his case ocught to. be

~taken into’ consideration- by the Chief Secre-

tary. A -great ‘many people thought there
' Mr. Forsyth.]
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was less work in  the ‘departments: in conse-
quence of - federation ; but Queensland was. a
rapidly developing State, and the work in the
“departments: was increasing all the time.  In
the Chief Secretary’s Office there was exfra
work: ini connection with the Agent-Generals
Office’s and the indents from the old country,
amounting “to- hundreds: of thousands a year,
“were all. controlled by this office: Men com-
petent to:act in these matters:could save the
State ‘thousands & year: Let: them  give a
man: a good wage, and they would get loyal
service.

Mr. MULLAN @ He was somewhat amused
at:the attitade of members opposite in oppos-

ing the amendment, and defending the action:

of ‘the Government, As s matter of fact, the
ackion 'of “Ministers - in placing  thede  in-
creases - on - the: HEstimates  nearly brought
abouta political crisis. - Nearly twenty of
the Premier’s supporters coudemned him- for
it in ‘caucus, and the way the Premier got
out of the difficulty was by telling them they
could elect a new. Ministry, but they could
not change the Estimates without demoralis-
ing and degrading the Government. In say-
ing that, he challenged contradiction.

Mr. D. Hunter: I contradict it now.

Me. MULLAN: The hon: member would
contradict anything:

Myr. D. HUNTER I was there:

My, MULLAN: What he had' said was
substantially & correct.  In. rvegard: to. the
amendment; members had no fesling of hog:
tility,: and it was not a personal matter at
all." Their contention was that the higher:
paid men should not receive further increases
until further consideration- had been given
to the lower-paid men. " In  fixing a’ salary,
he  thought regard should be given not so
much to the individual as to the office. If
the work in an office was worth only £500 a
year, there was 1o reason why the officer
should: get' £1,000-a yedr, o matter how
good he was.

Mr. D, HUNTER (Woolloongabba) : Last
year he took up an attitude which he felt af
the time he was justified in taking up, and
objected to this large increase to the Under
Secretary; and when he saw the proposal to
give another increase of £100 thig year, he
did not feel altogether satisfied. - A 33} per
cent. increase in two years did not seem alto-
gether: satisfactory, and: he could find no
precedent for it. But if that was objection-
able " to members opposite,  why had they
nothing  to - say during  the late election
against the Federal Labour members in-
creasing their own salariés by 50 per cent. in
one year?- He wanted to be fair.’ He be-
lieved the Under Secretary in this depart-
ment was entitled to be placed on the same
footing as other Under Secretaries.. Mem:
bers. opposite. were not prepared to take up
the attitude they took up last year, when the
hon.' member for Warrego wanted o strike
out the whele of the increase. He then inti-
mated: that if it was moved; he would: be
prepared to vote for the reduction; but the
vote was allowed to go on the voices. Last
year they made an: attack on the vote, but
they - 'did’ not fight it; ‘and this' year they
were: fighting /it by moving a reduction of
£1. 7 The amendment was not an honest one.
It was a dragnet amendment, so
that anyone who objected to the
: increases could: vote for it.  That
was: evidenced: by the: attitude of -the hon.
member: for. Clermont, who last year voted
for the increase to the Under Secretary, and

[#r. Forsyth
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on this occasion he was. going to vote for the
amendment. - 'Did members opposite contend
that £800 a year was too much, and was it
to- be understood that if the Labour party
came into power they would not give such'a
big: salary? ' He noticed from the Common-
wealth *Gazetie of the 18th August that the
Federal Government were calling for appli-
cations for the position; not of Under Secre-
tary, but of chief accountant in oneof the
departments, at a salary of £750 a year.
Consequently, it was not contended by mem-
bers opposite that that salary should not be
paid to the men at the top if the men at the
bottom  were ‘in “a good ‘position..  He had

~igiven the figures before, and showed that

there was a ‘great diparity.. The hon. mem-
ber: for Burke said they should have &
lTevelling-up system.” What did a levelling-up
system mean? It nieant to: raise the bottom
men; and not increase the’ disparity between
the salaries of the bottom men and those on
top.- The members opposite agreed that the
lad porters did not. get a fair wage, but in
dealing with the. Under Secretary’s. salary
they did not say how much too large it was.
The - only difference between him - and' the
Opposition was the difference between 835
and 334, "and they ~only proposed ‘a’ reduc-
tion "in the ‘salary’ 'so "as’ to: hamper. the
Government, and that being so, he was not
going - to 'play  their game  for  them. It
was: the ‘natural -feeling of “every member
that they would like to increase the wages of
the men at the bottom.

The SECRETARY FOR RAILWAYS : And we are
doing it:

Mr. Do HUNTER: The Under Chief Secre-
tary was the most important Under Secretary
in the ssrvice, as he had to. undertake {m-
portant correspondence with the other States,
the Agent-General, and others at home which
the other Under Secretaries did not have to
attend to, and yet they received more than he:
did. " He believed in: a. levelling-up. process
with the Under Secretaries; but, like the hon:
member for Moreton, he hoped it would not
be continued for- some years.

Mr. LAND asked for some  information
about the two messengers who were down for
875 ‘and’ £120. The junior messenger. was
born in 1891 and joined the service in 1908,
and the other messenger. was born in 1883
and" joined the service in® 1898, There were
two typists down ' for: £100' each; but he did
not know if they were men or women: One
was born in 1853 and the other in 1881. “One
joined the service. in 1898 and: the other in
1900.

The ACTING CHAIRMAN: Order! There
is a lot of conversation going on all:over
the Chamber, which makes it difficult for: the
speaker to be heard. There are small caucuses
being held all over. the place.  If members
who wish to hold these meetings would go
into one of the committee-rooms it would be
for the convenience of members speaking in
this Chamber.

Howourasry Muusrrs: Hear, hear!

Mr. LAND: Did the Premier think those
four people were getbing a fair wage? He did
not think they were. He Would_a,‘lso‘;hkev ‘
some:information about the items under In
cidentals and Miscellaneous Expenses,’ which
amounted to £2,000 in 190910
in1910-11. [If tho Chief 8
that information, he

any more.
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The PREMIER: This is the third day they
had been dealing with these Estimates; and he
had given: the information before,  In regard
to.messengers; D. L. Smith ‘was away from
the office now, and the man getting £75 was
seventeen years of age; so that he was getiing
a.'good wage. The 'other messenger was
getting £120; not by any means too high, but
he was coming on. -He had got an incrsase
this year; and was likely to get. s further
advance in the course of a year. With regard
to the two female typists, they received the
highest: salary paid- by the  Government to
typists, and -he thought £100 a year was a
very good-salary for a typist. Business men
knew: that such’ was the case.  Somie of the
girl typists were very good officers; bub some
of them: could do only typing.  As everyone
knew, " the' most useful typist was one who
could take down 'matter from dictation, and
then typs it'in’ proper form.
write a letter first and then get it typed; that
wag not much advantage. . Some few weeks
ago; since the Estimates were framed; some of
those young women. sent word to him that
they wanted ‘an increase in:salary,  and the
matter was brought before the Public Service
Board, who decided that officers who ‘could
do - both: shorthand: and  typewriting,  who
could take down a letter from dictation and
then type it in proper form, should get in-
creases- up to £110 and £120; but that those
who ‘could-do: typing only should be limited
b0 £100.. For  the purpose of “giving those
girls in. the service who did typing only an
opportunity: of proving' that they possessed
the qualifications for the higher: salary. it had
been intimated to them’ that an examination
would be held in December next to test their
capability ' to' write shorthand -at - the rate
of 80 ‘or. 100 words s minute: Those who
showed  that they ‘could do" that ‘would get
an increase of £10 & year for & couple:of
years——until they rose to £120. With reference
to the item of £3,000 foi ** Incidentals ‘and
Miscellaneous: Expenses,’” there was a growing
“demand on that vote:  The department had
charge ‘of  the  Public: Library, ' the: Picture
Gallery; and: the expedition of Scottish: far-
mers, and all expenses in connection:  with
those matters would come out of that vote.

Mr.  RYAN desired  to reply to some re-
marks made by the Premier with reference
“ to- communications  from: the  Agent-General
in his capacity under section 11 of the Govern-
ment Savings Bank (Securities) Act. of 1895,
The gist of the hon. gentleman’s defence——

The PreMIER: I did not make any defence:

Mr. RYAN: The gist of the hon. gentle-
man’s deferice was that the report should not
g0’ tothe. President of the Council and the
Speaker of _ the ' Assembly, as they were
trustees in: the matter; and the hon. gentle-
man allowed it to be: inferred that they had
full power to deal with the securities.

"The Premizr: I mentioned that the Trea:
slirer was a trustee, too.

Mz, RYAN: Only when he (Mr. Ryan)
interjected,  “ Is there -not: a third?’  The
Treasurer was the real and active trustee, who
had power to deal with the securities; and was
the man who required to be watched. : Section
2 of the Savings Bank Act of 1870 provided—

The Government debentures and Treasury bills so
purchased’ as aforesaid shall: immediately: after the
purchase thereof absolutely vest in and become the
property. of the President of the Legislative: Couneil
the: Speaker of the. Legislative Assembly and the
Colontial Treasurer for the fimse being for the use

1910—4 0
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and benefit of the Government Savings Bank and
after & change in the person holding any or éither
bt such offices by death- or otherwise shall vest in
the ‘suceessor o such: person jointly  with the. pers
sons holding the other of the said offices for. the
Tike use and benefit without any assignment or
conveyance.

The latter part of the section was as follows =—
Provided: always that the sameé  Government  de-
bentures: and ‘Ireasiry bills shall. be deposited for
safe keeping in siich’ place undér such’ regulations
snd-in- the charge 'of such officer or person: ag the
Governor in: Counoil: shall direst

He took it that the President and Speaker
were. there as what might be called bare
trustees—simply  as: watchdogs. . Section b
indicated who had the power to dispose of the
debentures.: 1t gaid—

The Government ' debentires and : Treasury bills
s0 deposited ag aforesaid shall not be sold or other-
wise: disposed of ‘without the express authority of
the Governor in writing accompanied by 'a. certifi-
cate signed by the Under Secretary to the Colonial
Treasury and countersigned by the Auditor-General
certifying that the proceeds of. the debentures: or
Tresgury- bills to' be' sold’ are absolutely required
b0 meet: payments - Iawfully chargeable ‘on ithe
moneys aforesaid.

Mr.Harpiork: Can they be sold withoutb
the consent of the President and: Speaker?

Mr. RYAN: According to section 5 all thab
was required was the authority ‘of the Gover-
nor:and & certificate from the Under Secre-
tary to the Treasury and the Auditor:Genseral.
Tt seemed ‘to. him a strange thing that: the
Treasurer’s colleague could: have  the report
of ‘the Aggnt-General sent to him, and that
no report’ was to. be made to the President
and Speaker, who were really the watchdogs
over the securities for Parliament.” The posi-
tion: was thali- the reports were sent to the
Premier practically to be dealt with by him;
and that they were really going into the hands
of the’ persons whose actions members should
be in a position to scrutinise, Therefors; lie
inclined: t6 the view of the matter taken by
the  President of  the Council: . He did not
know what the Speaker thought of the matter.

The PreMizr: Mr. Speaker has been unwell,
and has not been-able to-look into the matter.

Me. RYAN :© That was so. . Having regard
to what had taken place between the Treasurer
and the: Auditor-General over the University
appropriation of £72,000; it was highly desir-
able that the House should see that none of
its privileges or rights in these matters were
curtailed. He felt more strongly on the ques- .
tion than he really cared to express.
that in that matter the Auditor-General had
been misled:

Mr. BLAIR understood - that ' a  protest
against increases’ in high''salaries had been
made in the form of ‘a reduction in the salary
of the Under Secretary moved by the deputy
leader of the Opposition. He thought a pro-
test of that kind 'should: be made; ‘and it
would be excesdingly unbecoming if they did
not-endeavour; by making such -a protest, to
assist - the lower-paid  servants, who were
entitled " to ' cousideration - before  increases
were given to officers in affluent, comfortable
circumstances, - He undersicod  that,: when
the Estimates first: came. out, showing large
increases - to. officers alveady’ receiving: big
salaries; there was something more than per-
turbation in the ranks. of the Government
following; “and he understood further: that
a caucus: was held; when the voices of some
hon. “members, whose sernse’ of justice was
touched by the inequity of the Estimates,
were raised in more or less vigorous protest
against the increases being given to. officers

Mr. Blair.)

He felt -
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with large salaries.  He understood that' it
was pointed out that, if there was any retro-
gression ‘with 'regard to the Nstimates, it
would be ‘afar worse blunder than ifthey
bludgeoned: the Estimates through; and he
had no: doubt that there would be:a united
front: presented by 'members on’ the other
side.He was not speaking in any grudging
spirit with: regard to the inoreases: that ap-
peared ' on: the Hstimates. ' What he  did
object to was the subterfuge that: was raised
to-endeavour to: justify: those increases. An
atternpt was: being made o persuade hon.
members that the salaries of Under Secre-
taries  should be fixed  at £800—that that
should ‘be: the standard salary for the office.
That was. a subterfuge to justify hon. mem-
bers opposite in voting for the Hstimates as
they were. He did not dispute the wisdom
of ‘standardising the pay of public: servatts.
He believed there should be a proper: classifi-
cation; but it should not begin at the top:
Tt should begin' with the lower-paid officers;
some of whom were not getting ‘enough to
keep them in- decency and -comfort: = He
knew of meéssengers in some: of. the depart-
ments: who were not. getting enough to: live
on . in - decency, and - who  were not. getting
any increases, while other men were getting
increases of £50 and £100;, and some as much
as ' £200 in the last’ two years. The thing
cried- aloud to heaven as a scandal, and he
would be failing in his duty if he did not
make a protest. . Men should be paid some-
thing approximating a decent wage:  He was
very sorry that the protests: which he under-
stood  had . been made by followers of the
Government did not bear better fruit.. While
high officials were ‘being - considered, it was
4 great mistake to leave out the Under Sec-
retary- of the Mines: Department.  In the
Estimates; - as he- saw them, there was no
increase for that gentleman, and he was one
of the very best officers in the whole service.
The SpcRETARY ¥OR MiNEes: Provision has
been made to increase his salary to £800. Tt
was. an: omission; but it was Immediately
corrected in: the columns of the daily Press.

Mr.” BLAIR was very glad to hear ‘the
hon. ‘gentleman “say so.  He had:not seen
the ‘correction, “He had: only seen. the Hsti-
mates as they were submitted to them. With
regard to the classification of public servants,
he ~had ' always striven, “when he had the
opportunity,  to - see' that the service was
clagsified, - and " that; "as far as possible, the
individuals i the service received something
commensurate ‘with the work they were doing.
and that each officer received something like
& living ‘wage. - Until some general step was
taken to clagsify the service, there would not
bethat satisfaction that should exist in-a
big body of public servants.  He should say
that a salary of £100 per annum would be
little "enough. for a start. - Talking about
typewriters, the Government should not dis-
criminate between those who  were steno-
graphers and typewriters. and those - who
were only - typewriters: - The = Government
shiould . not follow the example - of business
men,. who very often paid their employees at
the cheapest rate. . The Government should set
3 standard, ‘and got business men, either by
legislation or by their influence, to approxi-
mate to that standard.

Hon. ' R. Pamp: Business men pay type-
writers: better than the Government do.

Mr. BLAIR was very glad to hear the hon.
member say 8o, because:he understood from
the Premier that the contrary was the fact.

[Mr.B latr.
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Another thing he wished to: mention on that
vote was that the Government should create
2 Public Service Board that would deal with
such  questions as  classification; ‘promotion,
increases; leave, and overtime in a proper
and an expeditious way. " He thought most
hon! ‘mmbers were convinced that the present
Public Service Board-—where the Ministers
constituted the board—was not a satisfactory
one.
The Premier : Not for Ministers.

M. BLAIR: Certainly not for Ministers,
and he thought the Premier believed it was
not satisfactory for thepublic servants either.
From ~what ‘he remembered . of “the  hon.
gentleman, ‘he believed ‘he would be 'in favour
of ‘a different kind of board; aud he would"
urge that a board should be oreated which
would apply not only to the public service
but to . ‘the railway service, and all ‘round;
and that there should be one:board to. deal
with all ‘those questions.: There ghould be
one . system, ~and ‘one appeal Insgtead of
having; as they had in the Police Force, some
wretched ~system' of *granting £100 in the
cage of the death of a police officer, the whole
Workers’ Compeunsation: Act should apply to
all- Government servants.  Theére should: be
no exclusion of ‘one branch, nor should there
be - any . discrimination  between différent
branches. He believed that it would come
sooner ‘or; later, and: the sooner: it came the
better. it would: be for: the service, and the
more: contented ‘the ‘service 'would. be.  The
railway service had  its ‘appeal board ‘con:
stituted: under a. special Act. ' The clerical

branch:-of the service  had  its
[7.30 p.m.] appeal  ‘board - constituted = of

Ministers, - but . the : police' had
practically no:‘appeal “at  all; and it must
very: often put the Home: Secretary in an
anomalous  position- indeed,” and one - which
he was perfectly certain he did not wish to
hold, and: which  very -often caused him =z
great deal of trouble. If such a system: ag
he advodated were adopted, they would have
a very contented service, more regularity in
dealing ‘with this' question, and' if they had
a- proper and distinct basis there would be
an - intelligible: way of - dealing with  those
questions: applicable to each branch of the
public: service: . He was very sorry . indeed,
on looking  through -the Hstimates; to  find
that very many of the lower-paid: officials
were ‘not getting - a - penny increase, while
men already getting huge salaries were to
get still more, and the thing was disgraceful:

The PREMIER: He did not want to curtail

- this. discussion, but' they were spending &

great deal of time on the first vote, ‘and the
time would be very limited before they got
to the end of the Hstimates.

- Mr. TaEoporE: You will withdraw  the
Sessional Order if we have not encugh time.

The PREMIER.: Oh, not Oh, no!

Mr. MurpHY: Don’t get. excited about it.
(Laughter.)

The PREMIER: A protest had been made
by the leader of the Opposition, and most of
the speakers on the other side, to the proposed
increases to the Under Secretaries; but they
had said they -did not grudge £800 to &
capable Under Secretary, and they would be
very unwise if they did.: The complaint was
that the Government was ‘greasging the fat '
pig,” as the hon. member for Leichhardt said
—neglecting the poorer-paid man and giving
all the increases to the Under Secrefaries.
He would protest against that just as much as
any ‘member of the Chamber; he would ‘not
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do: it while 'he was a. Minister, and he would
not have: it done if he could help it.. He had
tried  toshow. the' Committee before—and
members had the figures in their hands, and
ought to know without his saying it a second
time—that they had not been greasing the
fat pig. The secretary of the Public Service
Board had: put into the hands of members
themselves the actual figures; and he would
read them again for the benefit of hon. mem-
bers. He had referred to the matter before,
and:had read the: first: table on page 10 of
this: report, Appendix B, dealing with those
officers who were in the service on Ist Jariuary,
1904; and he showed that the enormous per-
centage of the increases given had gone to the
lower-paid officers,. He was then twitted with
the fact fhat he was not taking into account
the new. officers that entered the  service.
Fortunately, the Secretary to the Public Ser-
vice” Board had given' a table in which he
brought together the officers who were in the
service on. Ist- January, 1904, the salaries they
were getting,; and: the date. of appointment—
riot only the men who were in' the service in
1904, but  others who had besn’ appointed
since~and he showed whab percentage of in-
crease each class of salary had gotb.

2 Mr. RyAn: You are talking to your own
party; 1 notice.

~The PREMIER : As the hon. gentleman
had pointed out, apparently he had talked to
hig own party already. (Laughter:)

Mr. Hamrrron: And they talked to you:

The PREMIER ;- As: they were: perfectly
entitled to do:

Mz Harpaocre: You didn’t say that when
we were behind you=you told us to cross the
floor: of the House. ' (Laughter.)

The PREMIER,: It was) perhaps, not neces-
sary - to.say to those gentlemen when: they
were behind him that they ought to talk to
him: " They made him and everyone else very
sick of being in’ front- of them.

My, HARDACRE ;" You made us sick.

The PREMIER.: He wanted to show from
+the secretary of the Public Service Board’s
figures the percentage increase on the average
salaries that had taken place in those four
years from January, 1904, and that included
the officers who were in the service then, and
the new officers who bad come in since.. The
percentage increase on salaries from £600 to
£800 a year had been 0.9 per cent.; on salaries
of from £500 to £590,. the average increase
had been 5.8 per cent. He wanted members
to  notice how the percentages ran up  as the
salaries ran down. On salaries from £400 to
£490, the percentage increase was 10.2 per
cent. ;7 on salaries from £300 to £390; the per-
centage increase was 18.6 per cent.; on salaries
fromy: £200 to £290, the percentage increase
was 19.2 per cent.; on salaries from £100 to
£190, the percentage increase was 41.7 per
cent.; and on' salaries under £100, the per-
centage increase was 85.3 per cent.

GovERNMENT  MEWMBERS: Hear, hear!

Mr. MvuLtaN: Those figures prove nothing.

The PREMIER: Those figures were not
his own figures; he never saw them until they
were in print.

Mr., Ryan: Who concocted those figures?

The  PREMIER: The gentleman ' whose
proper business it was t0 concoct guch figures
—the: secretary of the Public Service: Board,
whose particular Business was to know all the
details of the officers: off the public' service,
and he had all the details necessary in his
hands. - Could hon. gentlemen say, looking

{7 Ocroszsr.]
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at those figures, that the Government had
neglected. the lower-paid officers and overpaid

“ the higher ones?

Mr. Brair: A charge like that could be
true and consistent with those figures.

The  PREMIER: It was very difficult to
deal with members ‘who ' said a. thing was——
Mr. Brair: I did not say it was. ‘

The PREMIER: When he was speaking on
this ‘matter before he said; “Show e any
four years in the history of Queensland when
the lower-paid men in the. service got more
regular or larger increases than they got the
last four years.”’

o Mr. HamiiroN: Has there been four years
in Queensland when you were as well able o
do 1t?

The PREMIER: He was simply wanting
members to recognise the fact. Now, if these
things were true—and he did not think it
could be disputed—where was the ground on
which. they stood?

My, Lzsing: Do you distribute the same
amount = of = money = amongst  fewer . public
servants?

The PREMIER : There ways a larger numa-
ber: of public: servants. The figires he had
read was. the percentage inorease on' the
average salaries. It would be a good thing
if ‘hon. members got the table for themselves.
It was really true.. Never before had so much
attention been paid to the lower-paid mem-
bers of the public: service as had: been paid
during the last four years, and hon. mermbers
opposite knew that quite well.

Mr. MoliacHraw: And still ‘some: of them
are’ considerably underpaid. :

Mr.: Bramr: Scandalously underpaid.

Mr. Ryan: The public servants will be able
to see for themselves and form . their  own
opinion.

The: PREMIER:  He was not troubling
about the public servants..” So far as that par-
ticular ‘matter was conceérned;. the Govern-
ment did 1ot attend to the details, but took
the advice of men who were really more com-
petent than the Ministers, and it was evident
that they believed. it to be a good thing.
That was the justification for the Govern:
ment. He did not say that every man was
getting as much” as he would like to give,
but some consideration ought to be paid to™
the honést judgment of Ministers, and unless
there was some reason for thinking the Go-
vernment. were incompetent or. careless or
partial, it was a very serious thing to take
the “administration: out' of the hands of the
Government. . Everybody  knew - that - quite
well, and no. Government would permit that
to. be done.. He wished hon. members: to
understand - that he was noti treating = this
simply as a party matter.  The CGovernment
were right in giving those: ircreases.

Mr. BLAIR: The Premier had very fairly
vouechsafed information to the Committes. A
portion:of that information was a fﬁgable which
had been prepared by & public official.  Dur-
ing the course of the Premier’s comments
he (Mr.  Blair) challenged the documents, ‘and
the Premier replied that it was an insinuation
that the document was faked.

The PreMIER: No, no!

Mr.: BLAIR apologised, but he understood
that the Premier had inferred that. -

The PrEmMiEr: Yes; something like that.

Mr. BLAIR: Tt was “Tweedlededum and
Tweedlededee.”. Ha  could. assure the hon

Mr. Blair.]
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gentleman that nothing was further from his
mind. - The charge of not paying sufficient
salaries to"the lower-paid officials of the sér-
vice: and- the acéuracy of the document were
not . inconsistent at all-they could stand to-
gether. It was simply a document. prepared
on the lower value, and; as the higher-paid
men in’the service were the fewer, an . in-
crease between the fewer of “them would be
a smaller ratio—the small “aversge of 0.9,
while as they came down: the 'scale the more
numerous were the officials:

The PrEvrer: It is the increase on the
average: salary.

My, BLAIR: That was the hon. gentle
man’s gontention. I it were examined with
the specific instances pointed out on the Hsti:
mates, he was perfectly certain it would nob

“be that. Nigures proved anything, but they

would not pay -debts. They could: get an
accountant to so manipulate  fisures: as to
prove anything under the sun, buf they would
not prove a fact.  When they had a case on
the Hstimates “of individuals: who: were not
being paid’ decent wages, ‘all the figures in
the world: would ‘not’ prove 'that those men
were getting ‘good wages: and- were . being
fairly treated.

The PrEMIER: Surely you admit that while
% man here and there in the service may not
be getting sufficient wages, the tables prove
that, g{enez‘ally speaking, they have been well
treated. k

Mr. BLAIR: He ' did not state that an
isolated  case here and. there would disprove
the general accuracy of the table framed on
the whole servide, but he did say that a scale
of that kind was misleading; because a paltry
increase’ of  £10 here' and there. in the lower
branch of the service gave a betier average
than £50 to a highly-paid servant: That was
why he stated that a table like that might
be absolutely correct, and vet not inconsistent
with the charge that the lower-paid servants
were ‘not fairly treated:

Quostion=—That - £6,724 only (Mr. Lennon’s
amendment,  to reduce the vote by £1) be
granted—put; and the Committes divided:—

Ayrs, 21,

Mr. Allen Mr; Land

.. Barber 45 Lennon
»; . Blair 55 Liesina,

,y Breslin .5 May

55 Colling »e Mullan

v Orawiord ys. Murphy

. Perricks ;. MeLachlan
v Foley 5. Payne

., - Hamilfon 5 Ryan

,, - Hardacre E ;5. Theodore

5 uanter, J. M.
Tellers: ¥r. Rarber and Mr, Foley.

Nous, 32,
Mr.- Allan Mr, Hodge
.y Appel 4 Hunter, D.
,; Barnes, W, H: - Kidston
5, Booker sy Mackintosh
.y, Bowehard .5 Taget
v Brennan ;. Petrie
5o Rridees sy Philp
4 Corser s Rankin
5. Cottell .»~ Roberts
5 - Cribb ,». Somerset
5o Denham s Stodart
o5 Forrest ,,. Swayne
o Forsyth 5 Thorn
3y Fox 5. Walker
5o Gunn ,y White
Hawthorn Wienholt

5 Iy
Tellers s Mr: Bwiyne and My, Wienliolt:
Resolved in the negative.

[Mr. Blair.
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Original  question stated.

Mr. HAMILTON wished to refer to the
mathod ‘of ‘appointing  justices of the' peace,
“and to show how  difficult it was for mam-
bers representing  oubside  districts, in. com-
parison  with members. representing ' metro-
politan | electorates, to get men  appointed:
Last year he went out to the Duchess and
found there was not a justice of the peacs in
the district. The people there asked h'in to
recommend a couple of gentlemen-—one, the
manager of Mount Mope; and the other the:
manager of the Duchess: Mine.  He did so,
and they were appointed. One of them died,
and the other went away; and then there was
no justice of the peace in the district.. He
might say it was rather difficult to geb suib-
able men toiact. He received several letters
on +the subjecti and ‘as the hon. member for
Flinders was going: out there, he ‘agked that:
hon. ‘raember:to mterview the people there.
The  hon. 'member did so, and  they  gave:
him: the names of a. couple of gentlemen—-—
perfect strangers to. him ~ (Mr.:© Hamilton)-—
who: were recommended.  He sent in the re-
commendation to the Chief Secretary’s Office:

#and oninquiry he found: that the  appoint-
ments - were not: made.. - The  constable:
stationed at” Urandangie told. him: that . at
times people went there and painted the town
red, but it would be nonsense for him to run
them ini-as he could not get a bench. There
was great difficulty in. getting justices of the
peace  there. gentleman - might “be ap-
pointed manager of a station, and he might be-
appointed a justice of the peace, but station:
managers: were frequently changed, “and’ the’
place: was left without a justice of the peace. -
It was only fair that some system of “appoint-
ment should: be: adopted. - He 'did not want
o recommend people. for appointment—he
did not know that there was any: particular
kudos to be got from it but when the mem-
ber for a district recommended fit and proper
persons as jusbices of the peace they should
be appointed. - Some.: justices  of - tha pedce
had to go from 40 to 80 miles to: Urandangie
and 40 miles to Carandotta-~which meant &
lot 'of expense-and inconvenience—in: carrying
out their duties.  About: Brisbane any hanger-
on of the Government was created. a justice
of ‘the peace. and they were as thick as ants
on “an anthilll He would like to know why
the appointment of the gentlemen he recom-
mended was refused.

Mr.. MAY  corroborated. what  the hon.
member for Gregory had stated. During his
time  in: Parliament. he had ' re-

[8 pim.] " commended " several gentlemen
for appointment as. justices of the

peace st one time or another; and occasionally
one was appointed. In the case referred to by
ths hon. member for Gregory, he went tothe
digtrict referred to, and he went to have a
look at the country between the Dhichess and
Malbon:. There was no justice of the peace:
in the district, and he got the namés of two
reéputable people; whom he recommended: for:
appointment.. He ' alsow recommended -other:
pevple in the outlying districts as’ justices of
the peace.’ He recommended the itinerant
teachers as justices of the peace and received
a favourable reply from ths Premier. One
he ~mét at the Duchess  travellad in’ the
Gregory and Flinders electorates, but he had
not vet. been placed on the commission of the
pesce.  If-he ‘were  appointed a justice of
the peace, he would be of great service on
the mining fields in witnessing trapsfers and
other documients; and would be of inestim-

a
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able value to the whole of the community. - It
looked ‘as if recommendations made for the
position of ‘justice of the psace were of ho
earthly: good.  He would like to have some
information abouf the items under “Inel-
dentals and Miscellaneous Expenses.” 1t was
$£2,000 Jast year and £3,000 for the current
year, and he believed 1t ran into nearly £8,000
last vear: Would the Premier give them a
feow  items which made up the amount?

Fon R Paip: The banguet you are going
to:is included in it

Mr. MAY He was goihg to that banquet;
and: he intended to go to every one of them:
(Laughter.) Bub why not say that so much
was: spent for banquets? - They did not have
£3,000 worth - of banquets. ~ The peonls in
the country always asked them for information
about these matters: E

The PREMIER:
berg for Grezory and Flinders, he could tell
+them that - the: CGovernment  had to take the
responsibility - of “appointing  anyone . to - the
commission:of  the peace, " While it was de-
sirable, and also fit"and proper, that: the
member for the  district should nominate,
+he' fact that a member nomingted  did: not
imply that the Government would: put them
on the commission of the' peace,. although
the presumption was that they would.. There
was ‘a suspicion - that  some ‘of them were
political ~appointinents, although he himself
never nominated a justicé of the peace as a
political appointment.

< Mrp Mav:-I can  assure you' that one  of
these men is an opponent of the Labour cause.

© Mr. MURPHY: Well, “why “should ‘he be a
Jusice of the peace? (Laughter.)

- The PREMIER: He was: not concerned
whether they ‘were opponents or friends of
+he  Liabour eause. That had nothing at all
to do with putting them on the commission
of the peace. At one time: a justice of the
peace  had ‘considerable power 'in electoral
matbers, but: that time had gons, and they
were of little consequence’ in electoral matters
now.. Since. he had heen Premier he had’ not
put men on for political “appointments, and
did not intend to: do so.’. When a member
nominated ‘a man for the' position of-justice
‘of the peace, the Government made: all in-
‘quiries,. and,-if they considered him: suitable
for appointment, they put him on. The hon.
member for Gregery mentioned two at: the
Duchess -Mine: - The  Government  appointed
one: of them, and:he wrote back saying that
he: did not - wish to- be on 'the commission:
That was rather disconcerting.  The mere fact
that & member nominated -anyone to be &
justice “of the peace - did not guarantee that
he would “beappointed; as if he was nob
Ssuitable for  the  position ‘he would not be
appointed. The: man' nominated  would be
‘considered 'on his raerits. . Whether a member
nominated - seven or twenty-seven, he would
just'get the same number at the quarterly or
half-yearly revision.  If ‘he nominated a-large
number they would be cut down.
Mr. May: Will he get a.percentage?

The  PREMIER: No; he would “not.
{Laughter.) By far the simplest way  when
# tnember nominated persons for the comrnis-
sion “of the peace was’ to come and see the
Under Secrétary or himself as to why they
were not appointed. i i ;

Mr. May: Bub your are so hard to get at.
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The PREMIER : The hon. member had been

“getting at him all day.  (Laughter.)

My, May: I ‘mean in your private office,
not here.

The  PREMIER: If members had any
nominations to make, it was best to nominate
two or three and they would be considered
on' their merits. :

My MAY : He knew the mode  of appoimnt-
ment of justices.  When a name was sent in it
was suomitted to the chief Government officers
and police of the: district,; and that meant if
they had a slight bias against 4 certain man
then he would not-be appointed.: He would not
recommend sny man for the position unless
he knew he was straightforward and worthy:
of holding the' position. There was a good
deal ‘of bias shown sometimes by officers who
reported on: persons nominated: for appoint-
mient: 0 the commission of the peace, and, if
a - man happened to be abt variance with the
powers that be, he had not much chance of
being placed on. the commission.  Would the
Premier bs good enough to answer his second
question, and give a synopsis of the items

:goming under ‘the heading of ‘‘ Incidentals

and Miscellaneous' Expenses’’?

The ' PremMizr: That has been done twice
already.

Mz LESINA: From what the 'Premier
had said with reference to the commission of
the " peace, - it appeared mnecessary that they
should - adopt some new  method.: for. the
appointment of justices. Hvery member who
had s constituency to nurse - attempted  to
get it ‘studdsd all over with . justices of the
peace; in order that they might become poli-
tical agitators on his behalf. "He had been a
mernber of the House for twelve years, and.
had recommended ‘only two persons for ap:
pointment to the commission of the peace.
The system of justices was a curse, and had
outgrown its usefulness: No doubt there were
some good ‘justices: of 'the  peace, but the

“majority of ‘them were useless cumberers of

the earth; ‘and should be removed.  In  Bris-
bane,. justices . used to pack the bench; and
make the granting of justice a thing of trade
and barter, and it had been found necessary
to- wipe them: off the bench in' the city and
confine ‘the work  to the . paid: magistrates.:
Thers  were some members of ‘the Tabour
party who were constantly hanging round the’
Chisf Secretary’s Office’ and wearing out the
mat; trying to gebt some. of their political
pals on’ the copumission of the peace: This
traffic: in the appointment of men who: had
to- administer justice was a scandal and. dis-
grace, and was only it for g barbaric nation.
Men should not be appointed to that position
for political purposes, and a politician should
not be appointed at any price. . He hoped the
Government would revise the list, and cub it
down by about 5,000 .

Question” put and . passed.

AGENT-GENERAL FOR THE: STATE.

The - PREMIER moved  that £13,374 be
granted for the ““ Agent-General for the State.””
There “‘was a small increase of £400 in this
vote; made up of a large number of increases
in-salaries. " During’ the past few years the
Governnient had been increasing the cost of
the Agent General’s - Office, and also, he
thought, increasing its efficiency. Not,oglly -
had they established the office in a be
position, bub: the staff had been reorga
and fresh blood had been sent from Q

- Hon W. K%htﬂ
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land to the office.. Mr. J. M. Campbell, who
acted at the ~exhibition as director of the
Queensland court, ‘and who did exceedingly
good work there, became acting secretary on
the: death of the late secretary to the Agent-
General:” The Government - afterwards  sent
My, P, J. Dillon home to act as secretary
and  chief clerk to the Agent-General, ‘and
My, Campbell was appointed to the travelling
bureau to go through the country districts.

Mr. Lesiva: Is he director of the travelling
bureau? :

The PREMIER: ~Mr, Campbell ‘was the
controller of the' bureau.  Other young men
had “also ‘Heen: sent  home to: the  Agent-
General's Office. - When 'he - was at home two
years ago: there were no Queenslanders in the
office.  The' Government thought that unde-
sirable, " and’ that the office staff should be
constantly : recruited by ' Queenslanders “who
had some - pride in Queensland; and who
would work for Queensland in the old country.
He found when he went home to the exhibi-
tion the most creditable spirit of loyalty and
patriotism:among the Queenslanders who had
beern sent there to represent the State at the
exhibition. - He did not know that colonials
were ‘so . patriotic ~until  he saw them in
another country.  They worked like Trojans
at. the exhibition night and day, and created
an excellent impression-owing to the patriotic
feeling they showed for Queensland. Instead
of having all Britishers in the office, it had
been ‘decided to recruit it with men from the
State.  Large increases had been given to the
staff. - Mr. Dillon: got . £450; “the  clerk “and
accountant,  Mr. Elliott,: got ‘an increase of
£20;5° Mr. Hutcheon got an increase of £10;
Mz, Lenton : got. £110—he was previously
paid from contingencies; Mr. Legg got £40
—he ‘also had been paid from' contingencies.
My, Camphell had been recéiving £425. as
acting . secretary to the: Agent-General, "and
he' retained: that salary and had & travelling

allowance ‘as well, 'so that he:was the best

paid man- in. the office. ' Mr. Tearoe, the
engineer, got an increase. of £50.  There was
ga,lso a -rearrangement - of the salary. of the
inspector,” who was ‘previously paid from: con-
tingencies, . The " total increases in: salaries
came to: £402; and, if he understood the posi-
tion: correctly, the expenditure was likely to
increase rather than. decrease.” They had an
exceedingly “attractive - Agency-General; and
an exceedingly ' efficiently ' conducted office.
It was better that they should have an effi-
cient staff, even if it cost more money to get
the work done, because he thought there would
be a very considerable increase in the work
to’ be: done in connection with immigration.

Mr.Hamrrron: Is' the Agent-General” ap-
pointed: for a term; of years?

The PREMIER: He was not appointed
for any term. He simply held the office.

My, Hamrmrron:  He is: keeping the
warm. - (Laughter.)

.+ The PREMIER: Hon: members had been
going on with the cry:about keeping the seat
warm for some years.: He (Mr.-Kidston) was
said to be going to London a good ‘many
years back, and he thought it was better to let
them continue to have that cry. (Laughter))

Mr. LESINA: The expenditure appeared
to be growing in this office, and he protested
against that, in pursuance of the policy he
had laid down for himself as an advocate of

[Hon W. Kidston. .
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economy. " in - State - administration, particu-
larly “in connection with departments which
might very well be curtailed in consequence
of ‘the advent of federation. The time was
ripe: for some curtailment in the expenditure
in' connection with this office.” Two or three
of the Australian States had already cut down
the expenditure on' their - Agencies-General.
The people ‘understood  that, when a High
Commissioner  for Australia  was appointed,
all the States would require in London would

be a resident trade  commissioner, - acting
under ' the  High Commissioner. . Although,
according to :the Agent-General’s - report,

there was a great deal of valuable work done
in the ‘office, he did not know that it had
increased. " -Yet the expenditure was growing
out of alll bounds. " He did ‘not know. exactly
in. what - directions it might be cub down,
but it certainly should be: reduced. : The new
premises: in’ the  Strand. entailed an expendi-
ture last year of £5,709; rent; repairs, etc.,
were responsible for £3,617, and incidental
expenses for £1,708.  The total ran up to
£9,000 or £10,000; and the vote now under
consideration amounted to another £13,374 as
against £12,972 last year. . No doubt the Go-
vernment maintained the office: to retain the
standing of Queensland as a Sovereign State;
but in view of the advent of federation, it
wag “absurd" to retain”six separate Agencies-
General in- addition to ' the larger Common-
wealth office; ‘each ‘with & retinue of ~atten~
dants. . It was absurd to expect  the tax-
payers of “Australia’ to keep up
[8.30.p.m.] six ' separate  State Parliaments,
. six puppet’ Governors: with their
six little retinie of attendants; and also to have
these six little State Agencies-General revolving
around: the central- Commonwealth  Commis-
sioner.. Throughout Australiz. there was &
clamant demand for a cutting down of ‘expen-
diture on such things. There were hundreds
of thousands of young Australians growing
up, and those were the topics that were: en-
gaging their minds. Members of Parliament
were becoming” fossilised, and did not know
what the people were thinking; but the grow-
ing youth of ' Australia’ would. demand that
the States should lose their sovereignty, and
that “institutions  like ~the ~Agencies:General
should: be pared down: almadst. to vanishing
point, ‘as ‘one commissioner. was: sufficient for:
all  Australia: Old members: like the  hom.
member for Townsville clung desperately. to
the " old tradition. regarding the sovereign
powers of the States; but: he’ (Mr. Lesina)
was in~ favour: of home rule for Australia
and: not for little pleces of ‘Australia.’  We
were all one people, and why should we fight
amongst ourselves about the retention of thege
semblances—this ‘mere " simulacrum of & de-
parted—the  glory -of ' which had gone the
moment’ federation had been achieved? He
would like tosee the Glovernment cut down
the expenditure:

Hon.” K. B.. FORREST:
your course now all right.

The PREMIER said. that several times
during the. present session’ there had been
some talk on the other side about: abolishing
the Agent-General’s Office.

Mr. Lesina: It was talked about: before
federation came:

.. The PREMIER: The office contributed to
the ‘dignity of the State, and he thought
that was quite a good reason in itself; but it
was by no means the real reason for seeking
to retain the Agent-General’'s Office there.

Yotu. are: shaping
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The Agent:-Ceneral’s” Office  was & ‘business
advantage to' Queensland, and Queensland
would be penny wise and pound- foolish: if
s she permitted her Liondon business, her immi-
gration business, and her indent business to
be taken over by some person—they -could
call him commissioner or what they liked—
if they had no comtrol over him, and no man
who knew anything at all about the way to
carry on a large business of that kind would
suggest it was a good thing to do.. It was
not the High Commissioner for the Common-
wealth who was the important officer; it was
the Agents-General for the States who were
the most important in a ' business - sense.
Whatever: status, "as a’ political ~officer, the
High Commissioner might have, he had no
particular status as a business agent. . The
increasing - work- to be. done. in cornnection
with immigration and the indent work amply
justified our expenditure, and would" justify
us.-in - greatly . increasing. our ‘expenditure.
He  would much. rather “ask  the House to
make & permanent fixture of: the Agent-
General’s Office than see any suggestion for
abolishing it, or even decreasing the expendi-
ture upon it; for all the expenditure incurred
was necessary.. The hon. senior member for
Brisbane South was there a few. weeks ago,
and said that he thought that Queensland,
for  the money she was spending, had the
best - Agency-General in London.

Hon.: E: B. Forres?: Doing the best work,
too. :

The PREMIER: He might compare the
change which had taken place in the. last
two.- years;: in- connection: with: the location
of: the ‘office, with the change from an’up-
stair office in Ann' street to a: big office in
Queen’ street. That was the change which
had taken place  in'return: for the extra
money which had been spent: ’

Mr. Ferricks: That is pretty rough onthe
last ' Agent-General.

The ! PREMIER : Noj; it did not trouble
the . last  Agent-General at: all:: There had
been 'a necessity on- the part of both  this
Government and the last Government tokeep
down: the office’ to. the vote, and cut down
the - Agent-General’s. salary from. £1,500 to
£1:250, but he thought it ought to be raised
to.£1,500 again.  The Agent-General’s Office
was advantageous to the State from a purely
business point of view.

Mr.  ALLAN: (Brisbane South): He rose
with ‘a’ good deal of pleasure to bear testi-
mony: to ‘the impression-he had gained of the
work done by the Agent-General in London,
and:-he was rather: surprised to: hear the hon.
member. for Clermont enunciate the: narrow
views he: had done: on this important ques-
tion: He ‘¢ould agsure the hon. member that

+if he were to-see something of ‘what he (Mr.
Allan) had seen recently+——

My. Forsyra: We will 'send’ him: home.

Mr. ALLAN : If they sent the hon. mem-
ber: home, he would ‘come: back  with  en-
thusiasm, and, instead of cutting down; he
would. double  the expenditure. ~As far - as
cutting down the vote' was: concerned, he
would ~ask hon.. members to bear in mind
that Queensland could not bé compared with
the other States. It was one. of the grandest
States -of the Commonwealth; and :had an
area greater than federated: South ~Africa.
It ‘had- less than 5 .per ‘cent. of ' its lands
alienated, as against nearly the whole of the
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Supply. 1351

lands in’ Victoria, and half in New South
Wales, and we had scope to maintain a live
Agent-General that no-other State had, and
it-would be: utter madness for us to abolish
or cut down the work ' being done through
our Agent-General.  Compared ' with “what
Canada had done in’ advertising and: making
the  State ‘public,  we ‘were 'doing 4 mere
trifle. v

Mr. Cotring: Canada is equal to the Com-
monwealth: :

Mr." ALLAN': He had ‘seen something of
the results which Canada was getting for the
advertising ‘and’ other ‘means she had: taken
for bringing herself before the public.: He
thought the time would very soon come when
our Agent-General’s Office. in’ London would
not only be increased but more than doubled.
In doing that, we would have to prepare the
way at this end. - As to expense; if hon.
members would look at some of the statistics
regarding  the moneys immigrants. brought
out with them, the money that was  circu-
lated hiere benefited the State in many ways
—rnot only the money brought out by immi-
grants but indirectly by the travellers who
were coming to: the State—by men of inde-
pendent - means, whose attention had been
drawn to Queensland through our agency in
London,  they would soon give: up: carping
that all this money was spent for nothing.
We were getting more for the State through
the - Agent-General’s “Office’ than ' we paid
away. - He 'could bear testimony  to: the
gplendid - work: being, done by Sir Thomas
Robinson, who: was a good business' man of
great experience, and one who: 'was inclined
to go-out of his way to: givé information and
to agsist - those: who ‘called upon’ him. = He
had i also’ met: Mr:  Campbell;: who  worked
late and-early, and he hoped that when the
time camé for him to return to Queensland
he would get: a good position 'in’ the publie
service: here... He hoped: that, while we sent
our:good men:away to the outposts in Lon-
don, we would not- forget those here.  He
was. sorry’ the' vote was not larger, and he
hoped that before long the amount would be
double what it was now.

Mr. LESINA entirely concurred with all the
hon: member for South Brisbane had ‘said
respecting the work done by this office, and
also the  officers  employed there, . and: the
extensive . commercial knowledge and. ex-
perience ‘and unfailing courtesy of Sir Thomas
Robinson. . Those facts were -beyond. dispute,
and he 'did: not desire to dispute them,  be:
cause it did not serve his cause..  He would
point. out that the promise was made. on the
ostablishment of federation that the guber-
natorial and’ “Agent-General 'establishments
would be. abolished, and none of those things
had: been. realised, and the  taxpayers: had

" now to:pay for a High Commissioner of  the:

Commonwealth and for two  other Houses of
Parliament. in: addition; and the. younger
generation were asking why ' those economies
had not been ‘effected. " He quite understood
that men like the hon. member. for Towns-
ville," who' had grown up-identified. with the
commercial: life: of ‘the: State .and ~all: its
institutions, ‘naturally “enough' would. never
agreé: to such:a radical- departure as  the
abolition of the Agent-General and. guber:
natorial establishments.  However, they could

be done without, and it was the duty of the
Government to attempt to do without them. -
The ‘work had. to be done; but it could be
done with ‘one central Commonwealth office in

Mr. Lesina.]
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Liondon, and let each State have a subdepart-
ment controlled by a. trade -commissioner.
The' work could be  better done -and' done
more cheaply than by the present system of
having an Agent-General here for New South
Wales, another there for Victoria, and another
somewhere else: for South Australia; and
another somewhere else for Queensland.  One
was better off than the other; had better
offices, "and they were rivalling one another
in trying to get immigrants. . He would like
to'seé. & - coherent united Australian policy
in ‘connection with the matter.  That had been
adopted: in regard to Canada; and it would
suit the genius of the Australian people better
than: it suited the Canadians. He did not say
they should 'wipe it out root and branch all
at once; but it was impossible fo cut down
that office without injuring its efficiency until
such time as arrangements were made to pub
all those offices under the Commonwealth:

BHon: R, PHILP: A good many  things
said 'in' vegard: to federation ‘had mnot come
to pass. It was'said that the cost of federation
wotild not be more than 4s. per head, and now
it cost Queensland £1 8s. per head:. He voted
for: federation; while the hon. member for
Clermont  was against federation.  Now the
hon: member turned round and was a unifica-
tionist., - What ‘would he be in-another five
years? - The hon. member talked about the
great Australian feeling. Tt was a strange
thing that that = Australian’ feeling had not
grown in. Western ‘Australia, South Australia,
Victoria, New South Wales, or even in Tas-
mania—they ‘all had “Agents General ' He
was very ‘pleased ‘when Sir:Géorge Reld was
appeinted to the” High Commissionership; as
he ‘was doing “splendid 'work. - He' did ‘not
think ‘any man. in Australia could do' the
work Sir  George' Reid was doing, but the
more work Sir George Reid did for Australia,
the ‘more work would. the  Agent-General for
Queensland get, - The Agent-General was in
charge of ‘all’ the immigration, which was
growing, and: he (Mr. Philp) was very glad to
see it growing. The Agent-General also had to
buy all the material required for the railways
and the wholé of the Government supplies:
Last:year - something: like "£3,000,000  passed
through =~ the ' Queensland =~ Agent-Ceneral’s
hands, and they wanted some tesponsible man
to look ' after: all that expenditure.  Hven in
the very:worst +imeés in Queensland it was
necessary to have an Agent-General, and now
three or four times the work was being done,
which . necessitated - three or four’ times the
expenditure. He did pot think it was possible
for any one man in London to represent the
wholeof - Australia in her immigration re-
quirements. = Sir George Reid was now doing
as tuch as anyone'in his position. could do—
he ‘was keeping Australia before the public of
Great Britain. ¢

Mr. Brestin: He kesps his belly filled:

Hon. R. PHILP: No matter how the hon.
member for Port Curtis lived he would never
be held in the same respect ‘as Sir George

L Reid, and the remark ¢f the hot. ‘member was

totally uncalled for  Sir George was a ‘politi-
cian and had enemies and:friends on both
sides, but the opinion was held, 1ot only
amongst his political friends but also amongst
his political foes, that he was doing a splendid
work for Australia. He (Mr Philp) did not

think the Agent-General was getting sufficient
salary, and he micht tell hon. members he was
not § candidate for the position. At one fime

[Mr. Lesina.
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Sir Horace Tozer zot. £1,500 a year, but- his
expenses were very heavy. When Sir Horace
Torzer left Queensland he had some little
means of his owi, but every shilling had been
spent in carrying out his duties. . The present
Agont:General had money of his own and the
salary was no object to him, but the position
was worth more than: £1,250 a year... It was a
good idea to send young Queenslanders homs,
and they should be sent homs more frequéntly,
s6 as fo give the latest information about
the State:  'Mr. Campbell. went home  some
three or four years ago.

Mr. Corning: Would that argument about
sending people home from here not apply to
the Agent-General?

Hox. R PHILP: That applied too, but it
was very hard: to: get men to go home as
Agent-General:

The  PrEMIER: The present Agent-General
knows as much about Queensland as anybody
ini the community.  He lived a long time in
Queensland.

Mr. Brestin: He got his title out of it.
The PrewmIisr: And he deserved it, too:

Hown." R. PHILP: He noticed the Prime
Minister of: the s Commpnwealth was  going
home : for  the ‘coronation; and had:invited
eighteen members ¢f the Federal Parliament
t6 go ‘too-—eleven fromone: side and seven
from the other. It would be & very good plan
for the Premier of Queensland: to invite some
members of  the Legislative Assembly: to'go
home next year—-he would not say anything
like  eighteen should go. It would be a good
thing: ~if members occasionally  went - home
and addressed’ a few meetings and' spoke of
Queensland as they knew if. Some of the
best lecturers that cdould ' be  got might: be
found - in: that  Assembly; and, if only half a
dozen were to go to the old country, Queens-
land could well afford to pay: their expenses.
Mr. Fisher had asked “eleven: from his own
side” and seven from: the other side; and: some
members of the  Federal  Parliament ‘were
going - at their own expense. This State was
not.: going. to be saten up by the Common:
wealth. - The work  of the Commonwealth and
that of the States was’ clearly defined in the
Constitution, and:one need not interfere with
the other; but = work " ‘in “harmony. ~There
would always be necessity : for someone . in
London to-look: after the interests of this
State i and he would like the Premier to think
well “over: his: suggestion of sending half a
dozen membery. to the coronation: next year;
and getting them’ to ' travel:'about and say
something about the sountry they came from.

My Jo ML HUNTER  recognised: that: it
was absolutely necessary for . a  State: like
Queensland, doing a large business; to have
an officer of - this ' sort ~ at " home-=quite  as
necessary  as it was. for . merchants here to
have  their representatives ‘at - home. He
agrecd with the hon. member for: Townsville
that they should work in harmony with the
other States; and he felt so strongly on that
point that he: would like to seo the offices of
the Commonwealth and the States all in the
same building. Tt would be a splendid adver-
tisement; not only for the States but for the
Commonwealth.  He was not a unificationist.

' He thought as timie went on there would be

increasing items of business both for the Com-
monwealth and for the States. He did not
wish to see the vote increased; at the same
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‘time - he recognised  that it was absolutely
mecessary, from a - business point of view, to
‘have s representative in Liondon.

Mr. BRESLIN rose to a point of “order:
He wished to know what ‘“at home’’ meant.

Mr. FORSYTH:  As members of Parlia-
ment; He supposed they considered they were
at home now. ~During the last twenty-four
or:thirty: hotire: this building had beeén their
home to & very large extent. If hon. mam-
bers would study the Estimates as they should
doithey “would  find that,  instead of : there
being - an increase in this vote, it was really
-2 decrease of something like £5,000. The sum
‘of '£18,000° wag spent last vear, and this year
they were. asked to’ vote £13,000,: 50" it was
evident' that the Government were reducing
-gxpenditure. <

Mr.  Lesina: The vote was £12,000 last year
and ‘they spent £18,000..  This year they. ask
for £13,000 and they may spend £20,000.

My FORSYTH: They were not likely to

spend’as much:this year.  Last year: the sum

of 510,000 was - spent on reut,

[9 p.m.] printing, stationery, ete.; and only

: £4,000- was - required: under . that

heading this year. This, with the advertising

‘rand’ contingency expenses of £2,000, made 1t

up to'£5,000 : :

Mr. Lrsina: The contingent expenses. did

mot come-to that.  You are wrong: there.

Mr.. FORSYTH: He happened ‘to be at
‘home two years ago, when the Franco-British
Exhibition was on, and he must supplement
the statement ‘made by the Premier ‘with
regard to: the magnificent work done by the
whole of the: officials sent: from Queensland
-ab that Exhibition. ' (Hear; hear!)  Not only
wag the Queensland Exhibition by far the best
ofall the States bub it was carried out by the
Queenslanders themselves. at ‘s ‘much “less’ ex-
‘pense than the courts of the other States; and
Canada. ' New - South Wales and - Canada
spent-huge sums of money in fitting out their
-courts at the Exhibition—thousands of pounds
~more than Queensland:

The . SECRETARY  FOR = AGRICULTURE:
feotly true.

Mr. FORSYTH: The men attached to-the
‘Queensland court were not only splendid men
for the position but they were loyal to Queens-
land. Mr. Campbell was a host in himself,
and “put: his whole, heart - and soul into’ the
~business: - He “wasg at the exhibition ‘at 8§

:o’clock in: the morning; ‘and was to'be found
“there: until. 11 ¢’clock  at  night.. Even on
Saturday: nights he' was - there up till 11
‘o’clock-at night.  So far as the attractiveness
of the: Queensland court ‘was" ¢oncerned; and
the crowds going there; it was far and away
ahead of any ;other  exhibition. = It~ was
crowded day and night; and the officials. were
‘kept busy throughout in distributing: litera-
ture about’ Queensland and giving information
;about - Queensland’s: immigration: policy. It
was. an: attractive: court; and: the officials did
‘their work well:

The PrEMIER: One of the best things sbout
it:was that they were all young Queenslanders
‘there.

Mr. FORSYTH: Yes; and they carried out
‘their - work ‘well.:" It: would not. be wise. to
abolish: ‘the - office’ of  Agent:General. - They
could call’ him Trade Commissioner or what-
‘ever they liked, but they misst have someone
in charge there to-direct the work.

M. J. .M. HoNTER > We 'will want to do
miore work there,

Peoy-
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Mr. FORSYTH: Yes; they would have to
do more work there. Especially in connection
with their immipration policy they would have
more work to do. They would: also have a
good many loans to arrange for in:the next
few years, and they wanted a man there:who
was thoroughly competent in the  financial
business, so as to help the Government in
connection with the refloating of the big loans
1Whieh were falline due and floating other
CONS:

Wr.J. M. Hunter: And to find a market
for our produce:

Mr. FORSYTH: They wanted a man who
was well'acquainted with the financial market,
so‘as to: know when was the best opportunity
to put the loang on the market. As the senior
member for Townsville: mentioned, £3,000,000
went through the Agént-General’s hands last
year,” so- that they wanted not only a com-
petent man but a straightforward, honourable
man. - If - they had a man: who thoroughly
understood  his business;,” he would save his
salary ten times over in. the flotation of a
loan.  And'if they wanted a good man they
must pay him g good salary.

The PREMIER: The' hon.. member for
Marsnoa  suggested thab the officés: of  the
Agents-Géneral and the Commonwealth should
be all in the one building, but he thought it
would: be better for Queensland to:be in a
single building; ‘as the other method would
only lead to confusion.

Mr. Lesina:. The
should be pre-eminent.

The PREMIER : He did not think so. "The
Canadian: States had offices of their own. )
entirely agreed that the Australian States and
the Commonwealth should work together in
the old country, just as they ought to do in
‘Australia; in the interests of each other:

Mr. J. M. Howrer: You are doing that with
the: Scottish Agricultural Commission.

The PREMIER: That was dssirable.  Ag
a matter of fact the States’ Agents-General
now  worked together. and had regular meet-
ings every fortnight or’every month; and the
Agents:General . worked = Larmoniously = with
If they had one general
office,” there" was ‘some danger: of confusion.
The chief -work for many years would be in
connection with immigration,. and there was
& rivalty among  the' States. It might be a
friendly rivalry, so long as they were not too
close. together. Tt was just like-people who
quarrelled when they lived together, but were
friendly when they were a little distance away
from: each other. Members must not look on
the money spent on the Agent-General’s Office
in London as:a waste of money.  Hyen if it
were increaged: it would niot necessarily be a
bad thing.  Excellent work could be done for
Queensland ‘evert if -the expense of the office
grew above what it°wag.” Just as the work
grew they would be justified in sending more
men from Queensland to attend to it. In
reply to the question of the hon. member for
Port Curtis, as to where ‘“at home’ was, he
could say that he had lived in Queensland for
a quarter of a ceritury, and when he thought
of home his mind distinetly turned to the old
place in~ Scotland.  But when he went t
Falkirk s few years ago his mind had to turi
back to Queensland, as he knew that that wa
where ““at home” was, as that was wher
heart was. L

Mr.-Brustan: I am very pleasec

" Hon. W. K

Commonwealth - office

o
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Mr. COLLINS: He noticed the expenses im
connection with . the Agent-General’s. Office
were steadily increasing. The senior member
for South Brisbane compared Canada  with
Queensland, but Queensland was only a State

of ‘the Commonwealth; while Canada’” was a
country with 4,000,000 or 5,000,000 people. &

The Prexazr: How did Canada get: them?

Mr. COLLINS: He was pleased to hear
the hon. member for: Moreton speak so com:
plimentary about the Queensland native born
and the work they did in England. The
argument: showed that they should give more
encouragement to the native born; instead 6f
bringing out so many of the British born.
The Australian born, according to the testi:
mony of the Premier and the hon. member
for Moreton, was superior in every way to
the ~average Hnglishman, Irishman, "aud
Scotchman. The aim of the human race was
to:breed men of a superior kind, and appar-
ently we: were able: to do that in: Queensland.:

The PrEmizR: If we are raising a superior
race here, is it not desirable that we should
got more stock to'raise more of that superior
race?

My, COLLINS : He would not pursue that
subject any further, but he should like to
know whether - advertisements 'in  the  old
céountry always . told the truth about the
tate ?

The Premizr: Always.

Mr.” COLLINS: The sum of £5,000 for
advertising and contingent expenses seemed
a very large: amount for that purpose, con-
sidering that the total vote for immigration
was £50,000.

Mr. LENNON: He had heard the present
Agent-General spoken of in the very highest
terms; and he believed the gentleman was all
that he was painted to be. . The only thing
he had to say against him was that he had
been teo long out of Queensland.  The Agent-
General was; he knew, a man of gréat mer-
cantile and shipping experience in Queens:

Tand; but he had been away from the State:

fifteen or  sixteen years. - While ‘admitting
that he was a first-class man, who could be
relied upon to:do his best for: Queensland; he
(Mr. Lennon) maintained that the Agent:
General for the State should be a man who
was more up’ to date, and who had more
recent knowledge of the aspirations and’ re:
quirements of the people than was posgsessed
by the present occupant of the office.” While
agreeing with most that had been 'said by the
hon. ‘member for Clermont as to the work
that should be done by the Agent-General’s
Office, he was not, like the hon. member; a
unificationist. . He was. a great believer in
the federal spirit, but did not think it would
be good: for the State of Queensland; or, in-
deed, for any State, to go in holus-bolus for
unification. "He admitted that as time went
on many matters would; of necessity, pass
away from: the’ control of the respective
States to the general control of the Common-
wealth;: but still we should ‘retain "our dis-
tinct interests as States; and have at the same
time esteem for and confidence in the Federal
Government. He noticed that a very large
amount of money was expended. by the
Agent-General in Liondon. Included in that
was a sum of £226579 for indents for the
Railway Department. He should like to see
that expenditure deereasing. He was looking
forward to the time when we should not

. [Mr. Collins. - :
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want to order so much material from the old
land, but would make all our steel rails and
locomotives in Queensland.. There was one
itemof expenditure he should like to have
some information about;’ and- that was the
sum of £1.000 granted for the relief of suf-
ferers in the Messina earthquake.  Was that
disbursed by the Agent-General on his own
responsibility ? .

The Premigr: No; we wired it to London.

My, LENNON : He was glad to hear: that,
and wished it to be understood that he was

“mnot objecting to the expenditure, as it was

for the relief of sufferers from 'a national
calamity. He noticed also a sum of £5,709
11s. 5d. for ‘ New premises in Strand.’”  He
presumed those were the premises called: the
“Marble Hall.” While he agreed that the
Agent-General and his staff “should be: de-
cently housed, hethought  they ‘should: be
careful not to eénlarge that expenditure too
freely. " Then there was an ‘item of £3,017
13s. 2d. for ““ Rent, repairs, etc.”” -~ This ex-
penditure ‘was ‘on: a liberal scale, but as he
understood’ that it would not be recurring
expenditure, he did not want to condemn: it
too much.. At the same time he would im-
press upon the Premier, who administered
this - department; that he should not think
that because things were prosperous there
was to. be no limit to the expenditure.

The PrEMIER: We only spend money. when
we need to spend it, and can-get service for
1t. .

My, LENNON :- Even that explanation was
not completely: satisfactory; the expenditure
should not be regarded as & thing which
could - go - on. without :limit,” but should be
carefully - controlled. - The' salary .of Mr
Campbell, director of the travelling bureau,
was fixed "at £425. He presumed that was
exclusive of travelling expenses.

The PreMIER: Yes; travelling expenses are
additional.

Mr.  LENNON = thought that  officer  was
very well paid, if he moved about a great
deal and did not stay in London. °

The PreMIER : He does not work in London

“at all.

Mr. LENNON: He hoped that he had: a
roving commission, and that he would Tot
succumb' to ‘the luxury and allurements of
London;: but that he would devote his ener-
gles to furthering the interests of Queensland
throughout the. United Kingdom. ~He  (Mr.

- Lennon) had- thought of moving a. reduction

in the: vote for ¢ Advertising and Contingent
Expenses in ‘promoting  Emigration to: the
State,”” but, as it was proposed to ‘deal with
immigration on the general vote for that pur-
posé; he would pass this smaller vote without
further comment. The relations between the
various: State Agents-General might be more
harmonious than they had been in'yearsgone
by, and, possibly, as the Premier said; they
were now Thore harmonious; . but they could
all - remember:. the advertisemeénts: that: were
inserted in the Press in tho old country by the
different Agents-General, and how each ex-
tolled his own State, always at the expense
of the other: States.. There used to be alto-
gether ' too much self-glorification and  too
mich - depreciation of their neighbours.

The PreMier: And it hurt them all
Mr:LENNON: The spirit that used to pre-

vail impelled him to adopt the ideas of the

hon. member for Clermont, and feel, as he



Supply.

had for many years, that one  concentrated
effort, under: the roof of the High Commis-
sioner,” would be a much better way of repre-
senting  the needs: of all Australia than by
having separate State agencies. - Of course,
there should  be sub-departments for = each
State. - That view, however, did not seem to
be shared by hon. members opposite, so that
they might have to continue for a time on
the_ present lines. He hoped more care would
be taken in the selection of immigrants from
the old country.. They had notyet arrived
at anything approaching a satisfactory method
of  dealing with immigration.” Too many of
the people. who were coming from the old
country were settling down in Brisbane. The
nhumber was out of all proportion to the needs
of the State.: Brisbane was the capital and
the chief port of the State, but they wanted
the people to spread aleng: the coast line to a
much larger extent than they were now doing:

Mr. HAMILTON: The Premier had stated
that the ' Franco-British - Exhibition was . a
great - successs - Well, “he had ‘been told that
the: exhibits of fruit were merely ocasts, and
that they: made a very poor showing com-
pared with the exhibits of genuine fruit from
other ‘places:

The PgemIeR: We had some casts of fruit,
but we also had actual plants growing there.

Mr. HAMILTON: He rnoticed an" item of
£2,194 for “Pensioners residing = in' Great
Britain.”  Could the. hon. gentleman give
them ‘any . idea as to who those pensioners
were?:: Were they old members of the public
service who had gone to reside in Great Briy
tain when they retired on their pensions? -

The PrumMizr: They are merely pensioners
who have gone home to the old country for a
year or two. - We have no-pensionsrs there.

Mr. PAYNE: The Agent-General in his
report made the following remarks regarding
opal -

There -is- always: a fair demand. for' opals; and
there is every prospect of prices- continuing good.
It is better that the stones should comie in matrix
form, uneut, Exporters: do mnot always cut opals
to meet the ideas of the London buyers:

There were a good many. men engaged in the
opal” industry sowmé. miles out ‘of Longreach,
and for some two years he had been trying to
discover the best market for those men.  He
had one or two very. fine specimens of opal,

and he was prepared, in the interests of the -

industry, to give those specimens to the.Pre-
mier tosend them home. ~Heunderstood that
Queensland’ had: the best opal and: the: best
matrix in the world: " It was a matter upon
which it was well'worth  the  Government
spending ~a. few ‘pounds in opening  up  a
market in the old country.

The PREMIER :: They had got a first-class
showroom' in." Liondon’; and,  if people had
regular lines  of goods: to sell in Liondon, ‘all
they had to-do” was' to send samples to the
Agent-General—getting. . instructions ‘sent on
by the departmernt here;’ of course—and the
Agent-General would ‘do - everything. possible
to bring them into diréct touch with buyers.

Mr. Hamizrox: Will the “department: for:
ward goods to the Agent-General?

The PREMIER: Yes; at the expense of
the owners, of course.: In’ a matter like opal

{7 kOGTOBEB.]
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he would be delighted to send a good sample;
and every care would be taken of ib.

Question put:and passed.

AUDIT: OFFICE.

The PREMIER . moved:  that ~£8,410  be
granted for ‘“ Audit Office.”’ "~ The  amount
asked for was £430 more than was voted last
year, and it practically consisted of 'increases
to the staff. He need hardly itemise the par-
ticular increases,” although he wag prepared
to give hon. members the information if they
wished to have it

Mr. RYAN desired to say a few words on
the item of £70,000 towards providing for a
Queensland ~ University. - There
[9.30 p.m.] was some correspondence in the
Auditor-General’s - report, - pages
3,4, and 5. With the indulgence of the
Committee, as he bad no doubt hon. mem-
bers ‘had read it, he would  ask that that
correspondetice be taken: as read. There was
a - letter -of  5th September,” 1910, from: the
Auditor-General - to the Treasurer;  6th" Sep-
tember, 1910, from the  Treasurer to- the
Auditor-General; “and also’ Tth ' September,
1910, from the ‘Auditor-General to the Trea-
surer: -

The ACTING CHAIRMAN : Is it the plea-
sure of the House that the correspondence be
taken as read?

HonouvrABLE MEMBERS ;. Hear, hear!

Audit Department, Queensland,
Brishane; 5th September, 1910:

8ir,—I have the honour to invite your attention
to. the following item which has been ' included
under the vote © Buildings,” Department of Publie
‘Works, in the Treasury Statement of Expenditure
for the month of June lagt:— .

U PoWARDS PROVIDING FOR A QUEENSLAND
UNiveERSITY, Erc., £70,000.”

As you are aware, parliamentary. appropriation:
was obtained ® on’ the 1909-10° Hstimates for an
amount of £50,000 for this purposs,: snd, on the
authority of an Executive minute dated the 2nd
July last, the vote was supplemented by an’addi-
tional £20,000. The total amount, £70,000, was with-
drawn_from . the consolidated revenue fund on the
1st- July;, 1910, and placed - to the credit of &
Treasury trust account styled:—

““ QUEENSLAND UNIVERSITY AND CENTRAL TECHNICAL,
CorLLEGE BrIrpiNes Funp.”

Section’ 18 of the Audit Act of 1874 presoribes
that— All votes which shall be appropriated to
the public service for any year and which shall not
be expended during such year or within  the first
three months of the following year:skall lapse and
shall not. be issued or applied in’ any future year
unless & contract or ‘engagement shall have: been
made and entered into before the éxpiration of such
year: by which' s liability so to igsue or apply the
same: shall Have been incurred.”

1t would; therefore; appear 16 me that this money
has. not- been expended by the Treasury within the
meaning of the.Act; in so far that your department
still: retaing full' control over the amount in: gues-
tion, and could; by transfer or otherwise, apply the
amount to:some other purpose.

The drawing of a cheque upon. one of the Tres-
surer’s. bank. sccounts and paying the same- into
another ‘of his accounts—sas has been done:in the
onge  under review-—ovan hardly be termed; according:
to my personal judgment, an expenditure of public:
moneys. It is: rather s reserve for futirs expendi-
ture; and not madé in aceord ‘with Aundit Acts.

In view of the fact that the transfer was for gich
& very desirable purpose, I regret that 1T am ocon-

strained to take exception to the transaction In its

Mr. Ryan ]
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present form, which precludes me from granting
you a certificate of discharge for the month of June,
1910, as presoribed in the concluding part of gection
©.33 of the Audit Act of 1874

I have the honour to be,
Sir,
Your obedient servant,

T. W. Conmax, Auditor-General.
“The Henourable the Treasurer.

The Treasury,
Brisbane, 6th September, 1910.

8ir,—I have the honour to ackuowledge receipt of
your letter of the 5th instant, and, in reply, I beg
to submit the following faote:~=

Last year Parliament  appropriated. £56,000 to:
‘wards the provision for & Queensland University and
central technical college: buildings.  On 30tk Fune
the money: bad not been dishursed; and it was found
that if the appropriation were allowed to lapee it
woald: be impogsible to' provide so” large a sum for
that purpose from the revenie of 1810-1911

The Audit Act of 1874, section 18, provides that
-all votes: which shall not be expended during such
year or within the first three months of the follow-
ing year shall Iapse. It also provides, in section 23;
that' the Treasurer shall make a statement at the
cloge of the year, and; by section- 2 of the Audit
Act Amendment ‘Act of 1895, he is to hand over the
surplug; ag shown by that statement; to the trustees
of the public debt reduction fund.

Ta-accordance with the latter provisions; I made's
statement at tho close of the year showing a sirplus
of £5,675 7s. 11d.; and handed over that surplus’to
the trustees: of the public debt reduction fund in
accordance with the Audit'Acts: But in that “state-
ment T showed that there had been paid into's
Arasti fund for the Queensiand University and central
‘technical college buildings fund a sum: of £70,000-=
‘that is; the £80,000 appropriated by Parliament, and

s further £20,000 authorised by Executive minute, "

and’ for  which: parlinmentary ~ sarnction will  be
gought in due course:

Now the question is raised whether T was catry-
-ing out: the intentions of Parliament in paying this
money into a. trust fund, and also whetheér in so
paying the money into & trust fund I ‘“expended
it within the meaning of the Act, and. therefore
whether I am entitled to include such payment in
*“expenditure’’ for the year.

There: ig no. doubt that when: Parlisment 8PPro-
priated. the £50,000 it knew  that little, if any, of
the:money was likely to be actually disbursed before
the end of the financial year. It is also clear that
a similar sum could not be provided from this year’s
revenue, so. that' the only way to carry. out the
- intentions " of Parliament was to set aside in some
way the sum Parlisment had appropriated; so that
it could only  be'used for the purpose for which
Parliament had  appropriatéd: it This has been
done, ‘and the ‘money: can niow only be lawfilly used
for the purpose for which Parlisment appropriated
it, and is ‘still as much under the supervision of the
Auditor-General as if it were in’ the consolidated
revende: fund.

There remains the legal or technical aspect of the
‘matter-—namely, whether, when the Treasurer paid
'this' money into. & trust fund, he ‘‘espended’™: it
within the meaning of the Aok,

This same question’ was raised before the Fedéral
High Court in the case of the State of New South
Wales v. the Uommonwealth, teported at page 179
of vol. 7. of the Commonwealth Law Reports.

The Commonwealth Constitution. provides that any
portion of the one-fourth of the. Customs revente
reserved for Commonwealth purposes: which ig not
expended on 30th June shall be paid over to the
States, just as ocur Audit Act provides: that any
surplus not expended shall he ‘paid “over to the
trustees of the public debt reduction fund:

At the close of the year 19687-8 the Commonwenith
Goverament paid into » trust fund for certain pur-
poscs approved by Parlisment portion of the surplua
reventie which otherwice would have been paid over

[Mr. Ryan.
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to the  States, and: the States claimed that placing
such mony’ to & trust fund was not ' expenditure’
within: the: meaning of the Constitution.

The present case-ig exactly on all-fours. In both
cages the orux of the question is: ‘“ Can money. so
paid into s trust-fund for specified purposes  ap-
proved: by Parliament: be properly considered to be
“expended:’ and’ be’ properly- included in 'the’ éx-
penditure for the year?” The judges of the Federal
High' Court: unaniniously: decided “the question: in
the:affirmative,

In delivering judgiment; Grifith, C.J.; said—

. The word: % expenditure’ does not necessarily
mean dishursement actuslly: made; although
that is its meaning. in some contexts.” But when
it ig used: in @ diréction’ as to the mode: of
making up accounts for-the purpose ¢f striking
2 balance it may have a wider meaning.”

# ® L * *

‘“L-have not: thought it necessary: o discuss
at “greater. length the meaning: of =the  word
‘“expenditure’ as. used im section 89, sincs, if
the word ‘ balance’ is used in the sense that I
have indicated, the word °expenditure’ must
have:. & meaning  large . evough'’ to includs
authorised as well as actual disburgements.”

Mr. Justice Barton said—

““Ag for: the word ' ‘expenditure,” which' was
the gubject. of ‘miuch: ‘discussion, I quite agree
that it primarily cans the ‘money paid: gut or
the. aot of payment out; whether completed: or
not. - But it slso means roney to be paid out;
and it means money that is in course. of being
paid out:?’

Mr: Justice O'Connor gaid—

“Inmy: opinion it iz only by adopting:the

= wider ‘meaning’ of “the word fexpendiiure,” the

meaning. natural and ‘appropriste in adjusting

finanocial’ relations between: Commonwealth and

States under a system of parlismentary govern-

ment, that foll effect can be given to the Con-
stitution.”

Mr. Justice Isaacs said—

¢ Assuming that S expenditure’ is s necessary
and implied. factor in- arriving at fsurplus: re-
venue” for the purpose of section 94, it cannot be
understood in' the restrioted 'sense of actual pay-:
ment o0 Uit apears impossible to read:fex
penditure’ ag confined to- the -physical act of
handing over money to the public creditor.’’

My Justice Higgins said—

T am-also. of opinion’ with my learned ‘col-
leagues that-on the: true construction of section
89 the word:‘ expenditure’ includes not only the
moéneys: ‘actually - paid  but. the moneys: which
Parliament has  appropriated to. be expended;
until'it finds that the money so appropriated is
not wanted.”’

The same definition of ‘“expenditure’’ is also given
by practical “accountants. At page 463; vol. 2, of
the " Encyclopsedia” of - Accounting,”” is: found the
following -

- Bependiture~The word ¢ expenditure’ was
formerly largely used as an eéquivalent for the
term - * payment,’ but it ig now’ used more to
express the incurring of pecuniary obligations
rather than the:actual “payment. ... The
word " expenditure’ should never be used:in the
restricted sense of a payment, but in the wider
genge of “an obligation incurred:’”

I therefore submit that T was justified in including
in.the {‘expenditure’’ for the year the money paid
into:a trust fund for & specific purpose approved by
Parliament, and which indeed wag the only way in
which: the intention of Parliament could be pgiven
effect  fo.  But, further ‘than this, sn Executive
minute hag been passed directing that the money
placed to a speoial trust fund for this specific pur-

pose 18 to be used for that purpose and no other.
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In that trust fund it will be as completely under
the supervision of the  Auditor-General: as if it
. formed part of the consolidated revenue fund.

Under these circumitances, T submit that you will
be able to grant the certificate of discharge pre-
goribed in section §3 of the Audit Act of 1874

I have the honour to bs,
; Sir,
Your obedient gervant

A, G, 0. HAWTHORYE,

Treasurer.
The Auditor-General, Brishane.

Audit Department, Queensland,
Brisbane, 7th September, 1910,

Re¢ InEM oF £70,000 ¥FOR QUEENSLAND UNIVERSITY,

c, -

Sir,—I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt
of your letter of yesterday’s date; furnishing me, in
reply to my communication of the 5th idem; with
the interpretation of the High Court of Australia as

go the meaning attributable to the word expendi-
ure.’’

As the opinions of the judges of the High Court
were ananimous, and were given in a cage practically
identical with the one forming the subject of this
correspor}«i‘ence, it appears t0-me that T must accept
their decision; as being that of the highest authority
in the Commeonwealth, and thereby admit that, in
the case now under review, ' the word: © expenditure’
must. ‘have s meaning large enough ‘to. includs
authorised: as well ag actual disbursements'” 5 con-
sequently T ust agree with: you that I am able,
under this wide cover, to grant the certificate of dis-
gé\;z;ge prescribed in section 33 of the Audib Act of

Ido thig the more readily as His Excellency the
??e&:ordxn Oogmofil yesterday created s trust fund
0; e deposit: 'of: thi i Wi
o he D his £70,000 " in: the following
“That 3 sum’ of £70,
the 30t June, 1910
University
“trust ace

000, which was transferred on
. from reyenus to. the Queensland
and. central technical college buildings
-account; be held solely and exclusively for the
erection . of the University ‘snd central technical
college buildings, snd that no part-of the'said sum

of 870,000 shall: be appropriated f ~
poge whatever,”” e o other par

I have the honour to be,
Sir,
Your obedient servant,

T. W. ComrAB,

Auditor-General.
The Honourable the Treasurer.

Mr. RYAN: This appropriation of £70,000
was the parliamentary appropriation on' the
Estimates for the year 1909-10, to the extent of
£50,000, and on the authority ‘of an Hxecu-
tive Minute, dated 2nd July,’ the vote was
supplemented by an. additional £20,000.
The " Auditor-General, in his letter of &th
September;, took: the. view that he could not
grant a certificats to the Treasurer, as this
moriey had not" been expended during - the
year 1 which it was voted.  He thought the
view which the Auditor-General took in thas
letter was right; “and that was clear from, s
consideration of the provisions of section 18
of the Audit Act, which provided—

All sumy of money which ‘shall be appropriated
to the public service for any year shall be legally
available  for the services:'of:'that: year provided
that payment on acctunt: of the same be made
during the. said ‘year -or: during the first’ three
months %f the year following:

And all votes which shall be appropriated to the
public service for. amy year ‘and which shall tiot
be expended during such. year or within the first
three raonths of the following yésr shall Iapse snd
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shall not be issued or applied in any future year
Unless & contract or’engagement shall have been
made and entered into before the  expiration. of
such year by which a liability. so to issue or apply
the same shall have been inourred.

The Auditor-General took the view thag
under that section of the Ach e was riot en-
titled to give the necessary certificate under
the Audit Act, and in view of that, the Trea:
surer ‘had: written the letter on page 4, in
which he cited the case *‘ The State of New:
South = 'Wales against 'the Commonwealth,”’
which. was reported in volume 7 of the Com-
monwealth Law Reports, at page 179. nd
on the authority of that case; he ‘endeavoured
to induce the  Auditor-General to ‘sanction

his  putting aside . this' £70,000 to & trust

fund; although it was not expended :during::
the year in which it was appropriated. . To-
his mind, the Hon the Treasurer, before he

wrote such' a letter ag that, should have taken

counsels ‘advice.  The. Auditor-General had
written stating—

I 'regret that I am constrained to take cxception
to'the transsction in' its present form, which pre-
cludes mg¢- from: granting you a’certificate of dis-
charge for the month of June, 1910, as prescribed
in the concluding part of section 33 of the Audit
Act of 1874

He refused a certificate under that section;
and: then the Treasurer wrote him:placing &
construetion upon™ an - important: decision of
the High Court of Australia, and which He
told the Aunditor-General, who was a layman,
that this decision was on all-forrs—-

The TrEsSURER: So it id.

Mr. RYAN: He did not like to express
what he thought about the legal opinion: that

‘the case was on all-fours; becsuse ke did not

think it -had even any similarity to the case.

The TREASURER: That iy your opinion.

Mr. RYAN: That was his opinion, and he
thought he was quite as‘competent to- give.
an opinion as the hon. gentleman who o6«
cupied the position of Treasurer.

The TREASURER: You are quibe’ entitled to.
that opinion.

The HoME  SECRETARY: It is only en:
opinjon. .

Mr. RYAN: He quite agreed with that;
but it was an opinion: with which every. hon.
member having common sense would agree.
Before the Treasurer wrote an’ important
letter like that, and induced: a layman - to.
grant- a certificate under the Audit Act, he
should have taken counsel’s. opinion on the
matter,

The TrEASURER: He had every opportunity:
of getting ‘an opinion; ‘and. going into. ahy
amount of research.

Mr. RYAN: Exactly; and from the word--
ing “of the .letter it was: necessary that he.
should” go into’ a lot' of research, because in
the letter there: was a suppression of words
that should never have been suppressed.

The TREASURER: You are absolutely wrong.
Mr. RYAN: From. the manner in_ which
the quotations were put in from the judgment.

of the High' Court, it really left out the gist .
of ‘what they said.

Mr. Ryan.]
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The TreEAsURER: Not at all

The PrEMiEr: You ‘have a- very: curious
opinion of what ‘“gist? is.
< Mr. RYAN: That letter was a misleading
letter, and’ it actually ‘misled the ~Auditor-
General in giving that certificate.  That was
5 letter  which - should ~never :have  been
written by a professional man to a layman;
with the suppression in it that it had.

The TrEASURER:  Your opinion. does not
make it a fact.

Mr. MaCARTNEY: " It is a fact; all the same.
{Hear, hear!)

Mr. RYAN: There wag the statement of
the hon. member for Brisbane North, on the
Treasurer’s side of the House.

The Premrer: Just ano’sher’ opinion.

Mr. RYAN: It seemed to him that the
Treasurer had laid himself out to extract a
certificate from ~the  Auditor-General,  no
matter by what means he-got it.  In the case
of “The  Government, of . New South  Wales
against the Commonwealth,”: the  Common-
wealth had plenary powers in. dealing with
surplus revenue. - There was a-special Act
called ¢ The Surplus Revenue Act: of 1908,”
which provided in section §-—

Whete. any trust account’ has been = established
under the Audit Acts 1801-1806, and moneys Have
been  appropriated . by the. Parliament for:, "the
purposes, of - the trust account;: or for any purpose
for whieh’ the trust account is established—

() Nothwithstanding. “anything  in the Audit

Acts 1901-1906, the appropriation shall not
Iapse: nor: be deetned. to. have lapsed at the
close of . the Anancial’ year for the service
of which it wag made;  and

(by The Tressurer may in any year (sabject to
section  eighty-geven of ' the  Constitution)
pay to the oredit of the trust account, out
of 'the  consolidated revenue. fund, = such
moneys . ag. the Governor-General thinks
necessary. for the purposes of the appropria-
tion.

Now, in the Commonwealtli case, action was
taken under that section, and no. reference
to that fact was made in the letter from:the
Treasurer. to the Auditor-General., The hon.
gentleman . quoted - Sir - Bamuel - Griffith’s
definibion that the word: ‘“expenditure’” did not
‘miecessarily mean disbursement actually mads,
but he forgot to mention that on page 192 of
Sir 8. W. Griffith’s judgment he said—

Tn'the ‘first place; these appropriations. did mot
purport. to be: for the: service of the financial
year in- which they weére made—1907-1908, They
were not limited as to time, and the two sums,
€0, long as they remained credited to their respec-
tive accounts, could have been further dealt with
as Parliament might direct;  though  there was
nothing to prevent the Executive from disbursing
them at onoe for the purposes defined, so far as
statutory authority to do so was concerned.. Had
i they indeed been limited to the services of last
financial year, they would still have been available
ot any  time afterwards under section 5 of the
Sdrplus Revenue Ach, which applies to every tfrust
account established under the Audit Acts, and saves
an. appropriation for the purposes of any such ac-
count: from lapsing  at the close of the financial
year for the service of which it was made.”” Hence
quacunyue. vie : these are. not appropriations the
terms: ‘of which: necessitate their being disbursed
within: the year, unless there is some congtitutional
provision which* makes it illegal . to  defer. thelr
actual disbursement:
The Treasurer also quoted from the judgment
of Mr. Justice Higgins ag follows i~
I am also of opinion with my learnied colleagies

that ‘on' the frue construction 'of section 89 the
word: ** expenditire’’ Includes not only the nioneys

[Mr. Ryan.
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acttally 'paid  but the moneys which  Parliament
hag appropriated to be:expended; until it finda
that the money so appropristed is not wanted.

The TrrAsurer: That is exactly our posi-
tion:

Mr. RYAN: He quite agreed: that was
exactly their position, but that was not what
Mr. Justice Higgins said. The Treasurer did
rict finish . the sentence . which Mr. Justice
Higgins used. :

The TrEASURER: Because the money was
wanted here.

Mr. RYAN: He would ‘ask: hon. members
if that was the true construction to be putb
upon the sentence which Mr. ‘Justice: Higgins
used ‘when delivering ‘judgment. = He would
read what: Mr. Justice Higgins actually said.
The Treasurer stopped at the word ‘“ wanted.”
Mr. Justice Higging said—

For: I am ‘also. of opinion with my learned col-
lesgues that on the true construction of section' 89,
the ‘word.  ‘“expenditure’” - includes” not only the
monsys - actually = paid  bub. the moneys  which
Parliament. has. apropriated to be oxtended until
it finds - that' the money s0- appropriated -is not
wanted—that i to say, practically until the appro-
priation lapses.

The TREASURER: Which it had not done in
this cage.

Mr. RYAN: Tt did lapse under section 18
of the “Audit Act. :

The TREASURER: We mainfain it did not.

Mr. RYAN: The hon. gentleman stopped
at'a comma, when thie sentence wenb on to a
full stop. - He quite admitted that the gquota-
tion, as it ‘was taken,. fitted the position  in
which the Treasurer found himself, but it did
not fit the position which Mr. Justice Higgins
was explaining.

The TrREASURER: We allege the appropria-
tion had not lapsed.

Mz, RYAN would like to know on what.
grounds they alleged it had not lapsed, in the
face ‘of séction: 18 of the -Audit- Act. - The
Auditor-General did not know it had not lapsed
—they did not place that in the letter.

The TrrEASURER: Yes; he did; the money
was expended.

The Premier: That is the whole point.

Mr. RYAN: He was - quite prepared to
leave the matter to the judgment of hon.
members on each side of the House and to
the profession outside the House.

The TREASURER: So am I.

Mr. RYAN: Mr. Justice Higgins went on
to say—

In this case, by the express provision:of section
& of the Surplus Revenue Act; the provisions of the
Audit Act (section 36);  which rakes appropriations
lapse” at the close of the finanocial year; are made
inapplicable to trust- accounts stch as those now: in
guestion. .

Tle -had addressed some questions to . the
Treasurer in rezard to that letter, and asked
why he had left out those words, and the hon.
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gentleman referred him: (Mr.. Ryan) to pages
3, 4, and 5 of the Auditor-General’s report.

The TREASURER: That is my case.

Mri RYAN: That was cleafly an evasion
of the guestion,  and, strangely enough, the
Press; which was not altogether favourable to
his party, were candid enough to admit that
the  question was evaded:. - He- (Mr. Ryan)
subsequently asked the Treasurer: would he
point out where on pages 3, 4, and 5 of the
Auditor-General’s: report. he could find:- the
information ‘asked  for; and the. hon. gentle-
man- again referred him. to the same pages,
without: giving any explanation. - He con-
sidered it was a very serious matter, and it
was. & mattér “on” which they should rise
superior to party politics: It was getting over
an Act of Parliament, whether it -was delibe-
rate ornot. He did not desire to say absolutely
that - thie Treasurer: intentionally misled the
Auditor-General,’ but; as the: hon. ‘gentleman
had not taken counsel’s opinion; the Auditor-
General had béen misled.

The TrrAsURER: In your opinion.

Mr RYAN: Certainly in his opinion:

The PreEMIER: But you should not state it
as an infallible fact. hecause it is your opinion:

Mr. RYAN: He was not ﬁ:ating it as an
infallible fact; he merely was giving it as his
opinion. - The mere fact that the Premier was
interjecting” so. much showed clearly that it
was not: this Treasurer who had  concocted
those letters. He had no doubt it was done
by the instruction of the Premier.

The  TREASURER: - There is no concoction
about; it. :

Mr. RYAN: To his mind, it was very mis-
leading. It was & suppression of the truth.
It was a matter which  should be seriously
disoussed, and some action should be taken in
thie: way of a motion to reduce the vote, be-
cause there was no doubt that the Auditor-
General had been misled into giving a certifi-
cate under the ~Audit Act when it should
never have been granted.

Mr. HARDACRE: He would like to hear '

some reply from the Treasurer to the remarks
of the hon. member for Barcoo regarding the
matter of the Auditor-General.

The PrEMIER: Everything is ready.

Mr. HARDACRE!: It was not a matter for
the Premier: ab all;’ it was' a matter for the
country; and  a matter of importance’ ag to
how they were to conduct the finanices in the
future. ' From the remarks of ‘the hon: mem-
ber for Barcoo it seemed to him  that the
Treasurer in his Financial Statement; and the
Premier: in supporting | that Statement; 'did
not lay down "an' analogous case to that de-
cided by Mr. Justice Higgins.  The two cases
were quite different, under different Acts and
under different conditions.

Mr. MACARTNEY thought it was rather: -

surprising. that the hon. gentleman who led
the Government did not think it 'necessary
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to reply ‘to: such a. serious question as that
raised by the hon. member for Barcoo.

The PrEmren- I do think it necessary.

Mr. MACARTNEY : The hon. gentleman
was allowing the vote to go through without
an: explanation. It was a matter which de-
mandedthe: keenest attention of every hon.
meémber. - He' did not know 'of any ‘matter
that had come befors the Chamber of so much
importance, ‘and it certainly ‘was a matter
that should: not - be allowed: to  go. without
somie. otice from both sides of ‘the House.
It was a’ many-sided matter—an  important

-matter—and he regretted- that the alteration

of the Standing Orders did not allow a proper
discussion of 1t It was" one 'of those’ cages
where perhaps - twenty minutes or: half an
hour was not sufficient for a full elucidation of
the question.  There were many aspects of it
—amongst others there was the position of the
Auditor-General himself, and' the.legality of
the ‘action of -the Minister. = There wagt the
aspect touched 'upon: by the hon. member for
Barcoo, ‘which ‘they as members could hardly
allow to pass.’ He had no doubt that what
was: done by thie Treasurer in this matter; so
far as the operation of the vote was concerned,;
was: illegal. - There might be nothing ‘wrong
in: the action the Chief Secretary had taken:;
it might perhaps be regarded as meritorious;
and if the Treasurér had gone the right way
about it he might have counted on the sup-
port-of the majority-~perhaps every member—
of  the :Assembly. The expenditure of £70.000
on the University ‘was recognised as a neces-
sity;” and when he realised that if the vote
was. allowed to lapse he might not: be able
during "the present financial year to provide
the mioney necessary to: replace the  lapsed
vote; he' was perhaps- doing a 'wise thing
in. not allowing it to lapse; but he: could
have  said. to' the. Auditor-General,  Under
the special circumstances - of " the - case, - I
propose to take. an. unusual course. If is
contrary to the Audit Act, and to the Act
which provides that a surplus should go to
the trustees  of the public  debt reduction
fund. I will not ask you to give me a certi-
ficate. I will go to Parliament for approval”
-~in the same way as he stated he would ask
for  approval with respect to the £20,000. If
he had taken that course, it might have been
a ‘proper- and fair way of dealing with the
matter, and he would have obtained the sup-
port of members on both sides. (Hear, hear!)
Instead of taking that course, unfortunately,
the Premier decided what he was going to
do, “and a course: of conduct was, followed; so
far as the Auditor-General was concerned, of
which he; for one, was unable to approve. A
letter: was written—by whom: one could not
say-—bearing the Treasurer’s signature.: The
Treasurer,. with  his legal qualifications; was
competent: to put the case fairly and gquarely
before any officer of the Government, but he
was: not prepared to say the case was' fairly
put before the ‘Auditor-General. The Auditor-
General was not told of the special facts;or
of ‘the special legislation in force in the Com-
monwealth, on which that  particular = case
turned.: They were not mentioned.. The Trea-
surer: contented: himself ‘with saying it was on
all-fours. He regretted to say that no one
reading the case could come to the conclusion
that it was on all-fours.

The Treasvrer:: That is a matter of
opinion. : ;

Mr.. MACARTNEY: It was a matter of
opinion on which any honest man would have

Mr. Macartney.]
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no - difficulty ' in expressing. himself. - (Hear,
hear !} He did not know that their standard
of conduct in that Chamber was different from
~what it ought to be anywhere else; but if the
hion: ‘gentleman quoted that  case before s
judge of the Supremie Court in the way: he
quoted it to the: Auditor-General,” he 'would
hear a-great: deal more about it.  The hon.
gentleman seemed to think that all-he had o
do was: to-get the certificate of the Auditor-
General: and having got that; everything was
all vight.. Hs approached the Auditor:-General
in: the way thab letter was framed, and suc
ceeded in getting: the' certificate of the Audi-
tor-General; “and rested the ‘case ‘on the certi-
ficate of the Auditor-General ‘under section
35 of the Audit Act. He (Mr. Macartney)
could not look at it in that way. That showed
perhaps why the Auditor-General was ad:
dressed inithe way he was addressed. He
would rniot: make: these remarks were it not
for the way in which Ministers had to-night
talken up the  suggestion made. ' Instead of
mesting it fairly, they wished to get out of
1t as & matter of opinion on which men might
differ. . He saw no reason for taking it in that
way. The thing ought to be met now as it
ought' to have been met at first. There
was no room for a: differsnce of opinion.” It
was ‘an unpleasant  thing to have to. refer
to: the correspondence in that way, but the
corresponderice - spoke . for  itself.  Unfortun-
ately, the Auditor-General  was - & layman,
and the letter was constructed so as' not to
give him room to think that there was any-
thing more to look at. Thers was nobt even
asugpestion that he should protect himself
by referring to the Crown Law Office or the
Attorney-General, or that he should take out-
side legal ‘opinion. " It was true that he could
have referred the matter to the Attorney-
CGeneral or to s barrister; but the Auditor-
General was a layman, ‘and be had a state-
ment of the case pub before him which was
complete in: itself, and did not suggest that
there taight “be matters to: which he should
apply. his. mind. - He owed & serious, duty
to. that' House; and  he regretted to. say
that, in o his “opioion; the AunditorGeneral
had  failed  in hiyduty to the House.  If
there ‘was ‘any virtue in. the provisions: of
the Audit Actk it was' that  the -Auditor-
General would take the House into his confi-
dence in all matters concerning any depatture
from the provisions of ‘the' Act; and appar-
ently in this case he had clear doubt in his
owrn: mind  as to whether the action” was a
proper one or not.  He clearly and properly
stated it in his first letter; and but for the
letter written from the Treasury he had no
doubt the certificate would not have . been
given, and the matter would: have been re-
ported to the House for consideration in the
ustial way.  Instead of that, by reason of that
very letter, the Auditor-General granted the
certificate without, to his mind; sufficient in-
quiry. - Fle supposed that the Auditor-General
relied on the fact that the Hon. the Treasurer
was: g man of legal standing, and that he
put matters: before him fully and fairly. He
thought - the Auditor-General ought 4o have
taken: an independent  opinion and: reported
the matter to the House without granting the

- eertificate. Tf they found in a matter' of this
sort the Auditor-General was even lax in the
performance: of ‘his duty, what must they sup-
pose in regard to smaller malters that might
notiperhaps attract so much notice?  If the

{8r Hacartney
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Lon: gentleman “had: sent  to the -Auditor-
General the Commonwealth report. telling him:
the case spoke for itself, one might say he
did all that eould be demanded.

The Treasvmsr: I gave him: all’ the par-
ticulars,  and T presumed: he “had: all the
knowledge.

Mr. MAOARTNEY : The hon. gentleman:
might say that as much as he liked, but
there was the letter, and there was no neces-
sity ‘why the Auditor-General; as a: layman,

should  go: outside that: letter.

[10pim.] There was no suggestion that the

Auditor-General  should ' fortify
himself by any other information.: The crux
of the matter was this: They had an Audit:
‘Act, and ‘the matter should ‘have been re-
ported by the ‘Auditor-General to the House;
but, instead of ‘that course being adopted,
the money had been diverted to a trust fund
without ‘any ‘legislative authority, such ‘as
the Commonwealth ‘authorities; at any rate,
thought it necessary when they passed legis-
lation specially providing: for the creation
of “trust funds accounts and the operation
thereon. ST

OprosITION MEMBERS: Hear, hedr!

Mr.. MACARTNEY " The authority  for
that should have kzen  received- from - the
House, ‘and the effect wasz practically this:
That the Treagurer for the time being could
practically decide whether they were o have
& surplus or whether they were to have a
deficit—how much that surplus was to be; or
how much that deficit was to. be.

OrposiTioN MuMseRs : - Hear, hear !

Mr. MACARTNEY : They must see from:
the statutes that if there was any surplus it

" must go to the trustees under the public debt

reduction fund.
Orrostrion MemBErg: Hear; hear!

Mr.. MACARTNEY : But if the Treasurer
was ‘allowed to pay that money’ into  trust
account ~without  any legislative authority;
then it was: open to-the Treasurer to. say
what: the surplus. should. be, or “whether
there should: bs a surplus at all:

OprosITION - MEMBERS : Hear, hear !

Mr. MACARTNEY : Not only did it affect
the question of the lapsed vote, it seriously
affected. the State’s legislation.:: Instead of
paying the amount into the public debt reduc-
tion fund, the Treasurer could; at his own
sweet will; take, without legislative authority,
any - amount he  wanted for that particular
year.

OppostTIoN  MenBERs @ Hear, hear !

Mr. MACARTNEY : Tt was never the in-
tention of Parliament that it should' delegate
ity powers in that way. Xe did not mean to
labour the question at any greater length. He
thought it was a very serious thing, and it
should - receive: consideration from members
on both sides of the Chamber. If they passed
a matter of that kind to:day for a Govern
ment which they -supported, ‘he did not see
how they could criticise a. Government from
the ~other sids when they came into power
and did a similar thing.

Mr. J. M. Huwrer: It is establishing a
precedent. :
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Moo MACARTNEY : " There were. some
things which they must discuss from a high
standpoint, - and not altogether as members
of ‘g party
Oprosirion . Memsers : Hear, hear!

Mr. MACARTNEY : And this matter was
one-of them. (Hear, hear!) If a vole was
moved for the reduction of the present Hsti-
mates s & protest against the course that
had been: adopted, then he could only say

that he would throw in his lot' with that

vote.
OpposTrioNy. MempErs: Hear, hear |

Mr. MACARTNEY: They did that thing
when they could have put the matter right
so simply, but they did not take the simple
cotirse: and: the - right course;  they took a
course that was without legislative anthority.:

OpposITioN. MemseRsS ¢ Hear, hear!

The PREMIER : He thought' this was a
very: important matter, not only because: of
the principle ‘involved in'the action  of the
Treasurer and the action of the Auditor-
General “bub because the chief “imputation
was that the = Auditor-General  was  not
competent. That was a ' very serious thing
to say—that the ‘Auditor-General: an officer
appointed and responsible to the Houge, had
been induced by the Freasurer or-had been
induced by the Government to: give a cer-
tificate~—to give a discharge at the end of the
year—when he ‘ought not legally to - have
given: that 'discharge—that the thing was
ilegal, and he ought not 4o have done it
That was ‘a" very:§erious charge t0 make
against: the  Auditor-General.

My Brar:And against the Government;
too: ;

The PREMIER : He also agreed with the

hon. member ‘for Brisbane North, Mz
Maocartney; that there  were 'some  things

where a: man should: put party ‘allegiance
aside in ‘dealing with them,; and he noticed
how cheerfuily the *‘ Hear, hears!”’ ¢ame from
the other side of the House.

Mr.  Murzan i You are playing the party
game now. - This is not a party matber.

The. ACTING CHAIRMAN: Order! T

must ask hon. members to allow the Chief
Secretary. to. be heard in’ silence. . (Hear,
hear'!y The question. is. one of ‘very greak
importance. . (Hear; hear!). The House has
listened: to the hon. member: for Barcoo and
the hon: member for Brisbane North, and
Just. in the same way they should listen to
the: Chief Secretary, and allow him to makes
his statement as he considers it necessary to
make it.

The PREMIER : The Government may be

-~ right or wrong in this matter, but he had ne¢
doubt about it himself.. He considered: that

the - Government - had. acted’ rightly “and

legally. . Of course, he was not infallible in-

these matters any more than other members
of the Chamber, but he had not the slightest
doubt in his own mind that the Treasureér’s
action was “a perfectly legal one; ‘and ‘that
the  Auditor-General’s “action’ was the only
action which the Auditor-General could take:
He might be mistaken in that, but that was
his: honest conviction.: ~ He  admitted, and
hon. - gentlemen’ recognised,  that  that was
not only an imporfant matber but it was a
matter . on - which they. might well differ.

He ventured to make. this prediction on this:

o non-party matter, - It was not 'a non-party
1910-4 » ’
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matter with him by any means, but how the
other. side: welcomed it - as . a. non-party
matter: : .

M Hiwtron s You are imputing motives
now.

The. PREMIER: He ventured to_predict
that there was not one man on the other side
of the House who would have the slightest
doubt on this question: ’ .

Mr. MULIAN i You are trying to make it
a party matter straight’ away

The PREMIER: He was posing as a
prophet. .

Mr. LENNON:
able.

The PREMIER : He was taking the risk
of that.
© Mr. Fearoks: Let him go,

The "PREMIER:  He wanted to show
why the Government considered that: they:
were justified in taking the action they. did
and ‘why they considered that action was:
quite legal.” The action they took was really
the proper: action to take under the circums
stances. He' wanted also to appeal to the
common sense of ‘members on: this ground:
That the Government were not likely to take:
3 eourse of ‘conduct which they themselves
considered wad  illegal,  when ‘they knew:
quite well that 1 view of the purposes for
which they wanted to reserve that money the
House was likely to approve of it belng so
reserved.

The TrrisvrEn : Without any trouble.

The PREMIER: Why,; therefore, should
the Government take an illegal course; know-
ing it to be illegal? "He was not saying that
they might nob  be mistaken, but what he
wanted to point ‘out was that there ‘was po
reason for the Government taking' an illegal
course if they thought it was an illegal course.
They were just as: liable to" be  mistakon
a5 other members of - the House, but here
was the position: The  House appropriated
£50,000 last’ year for: University and techni-
cal college purposes.  Hon. members knew
was. - impossible - to
spend - any: appreciable part of that “money
during - the" current financial year.  Just:lef
bim say that there were two sums of money
in. question.’ There was the- £50,000. appro-
priated - by Parliament' last year and the
£20,000 ‘which the Government. took on’their
Iinisterial responsibility, and he wanted to
distinguish. betweéen the two sums.  If the
House had anything to say agdinst the using
the £20.000 in that way, good and well.: Min-
isters took: it on their own responsiblity; and
it came down on’ the Supplementary  Esti-
mates. .- When it came" before them on - the
Sunplementary- - Estimafes. they gave their
judgment, “and:approved-‘or disapproved: of
what the Governiment had done. . With regard
to the £50,000, the matter was different.” The
£50,000 was: appropriated by Parliament: for
gertain specified  purposes.: The ‘money. had
not been spent -for: those: purposes, but did
any man say that the Government were not:
under an ‘engagement’ to carry out- the eéx-:
penditure. for ‘the: University?  Was it nob
carrying out the intention. of the House to
make suve: that they would have that money
for the University?. It was clearly imipossible
to “provide that roney  out: of  this year’s
revenue.  Kvervbody recognised that. If they
could not legally appropriate the £50,000 thev
had-out of last yvear’s revenue, from.which it
had been: appropriated, there would have been

It might be very unprofit-

‘=m0 £50,000  without fresh taxation thiy year.

Hon, W. Kidston.]
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Mz, HARDACRE: Or an’ Act to take it out
of the public. debt reduction fund.

The: PREMIER:
bhave done- it all’ the same, and have  asked
Parliament to pass an indemnity Bill.. The
Government could have taken the responsi-
bility of doing what they did, and have asked
the House to pass an indemnity Bill.~ He did
not think there would have  been- any. ques-
tion of the House approving of their safe-
guarding that money for University purposes.

Mr. LENNON; Safeguarding it?

The. PREMIER: " The -Government taking
care’ that the money which: Parliament had
appropriated. for-a University would be used
for that  purpose. They Knew, and Parlia-
ment’ knew, “that' they would: not have that
amount of money to devote to:that purpose
this: year. The reason the Government took
the course they did, instead of the one that
had been suggested, he would now. explain:
Aboitt. 1908 the Federal Government passed a
Surplus - Revenue Bill, 'and. they dppropriated
gerfain moneys at the end" of the year for
Federal - purposes which 'some of the States
believed should have been devoted to State
purposes, - -Both - the- hon.  member . for
Barcoo, Mr. Ryan, and the hon. member for
Brisbane North, Mr. Macartney, had spoken
about this matter as if the Surplus Revenue
Bill was the thing which made the Federal
case resemble the Queensland case.

My, MacarTNY:- That was not - my con-
tention.

The PREMIER : But that was not so. - The
thing that made the two cases resemble: one
another—that - made theé thing this Govern-
ment- had done exactly parallel to what was
done by: the Federal  Government: and ap-
proved by the Federal Parliament~was this:
The Federal Constitution provided that after
the expenditure for the year had been de-
clared by the Government all the money
that' was left over should be paid to the
States—that = after the Federal Government
said “what. was their expenditure the rest of
the money 'was no longer theirs, but was to
be- paid over to the States. ~And:they passed
a Surplus:Revenue Act for dealing with: the
matter,  In-Queensland, after the Treasurer
declared. what  his. expenditure for the year
had been, the money remaining in his hands
went into the. public: debt reduction fund.
Neither the State Treasurer nor the Federal
Treasurer had: any discretion as to what was
to. be done with the surplus once it was de-
clared.

Mr. LenNoN: He juggled with that surplus,
and reduced it down:

The PREMIER: He wanted hon, members
tounderstand this point, because it-all hinged
on- thig: ' When the Treasurer declared - that
hie had a certain surplus, he had no longer
any. right to-deal with it—he had lost the
legal right to handle a penny of that money;

he .must. pay it into the public. debt reduc-~

tion fund. - In like manner the Federal Trea-
surer; when he ‘declared his surplus, lost con-
trol over it—he could not put it into a trust

fund; but: bad to. pay it over to those to.

whom it belonged—the. State Treasurers.

My, Biair: Before you go any further—-
Didn’t the surplus the Treasurer: declared ex-
clude this disputed amount?

The PREMIER : Certainly.

Mz, Brair: That is what I say, aud, as the
leader of the Opposition says, he juggled it:

[Hon. W. Kidston.
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The PREMIER: The hon. member may
sS4y 50.

Mr. Btar: I am not saying it offensively.

The PREMIER:  The charge against the
Treasurer was, not that jugglery took place
in' determining -the - surlpus, bub. that the
money’ was used in a way that the Treasurer
had no: business: to useit. He ' wanted to
show' that both: the Federal Treasurer and
the' State Tréasurer were bound 'in. exactly
the same way. After they had declared what
their revenue was, and ‘what their expendi-
ture-was, the balance between the two legally
passed beyond their control—in the one case
to the State Treasurers, and in the other case
tothe: public/debt: reduction: furid:

Mr. Brair: ‘But he was not bound, except
to the extent of the surplus he declared.

The ' PREMIER:  Both' Treasurers  were
bound to show an-accoiint—they were bound
to show the revenue they had received, and
they were bound to show what their expendi-
ture had been, and the difference between the
two the Treasurer in both “cases lost control
over.. Was not that clear?

An HoxoUrRABLE MEMBER: Yes.

Mr. LexNON: But he improperly showed
his expenditure.

The PREMIER: Never mind about that
just now. He would show hon. members, if
they would be a little patient, that the whole
crux ‘of the matter lay in the facts he was
stating.” - He. was. frying  to show why  the
Government believed the action they took was
the right action; and how the two cases were
exactly parallel.  Had he not shown that they
were exactly parallel so far—that in both cases
the. Treasurer: must declare what his revenue
had been and what his expenditure had been;
and that the balance, if there was any balance,
between the two had legally passed beyond his
control?  The Federal: Treasurer wanted to
put money into a trust fund-—he wanted to
take some of the surplus;, the difference be-
tweent his revenue and his expenditure, and
pub it into a frust fund for Federal purposes
approved by Parliament, instead of giving it
to the States. But he knew that if he declared
a surplus hie could not put it into a trust fund
—it ‘had- gone beyond his legal control: So,
before he declared a surplus, he put into a
trust fund the part he required for Fedeval
purposes. - He showed the Auditor-General
that here was his revenue-——

Mr. MacartNey: . He  acted ' under the
authority of the special Act.

The PREMIER: He did not intend to dis-
cuss: legal points: with the hon.: member. It
would be presumptuous for him to attempt to
do so. The special “Act did not affect the
constitutionality of the transaction at all: It
was not the Surplus Revenue Act that Hmited
the power of the Federal Treasurer.  His
power was limited by the Constitution. The
Federal Constitution provided that he had to
give an account of his revenue and of his
expenditure, ‘and pay over the balance. Was
not that the law?

Mr. MacartNEY: N6.

The PREMIER:: The Surplus Revenue Act
did not affect the obligation: of the Federal
Treasurer to pay over the difference between
his- revenue and his expenditure to the State
Treasurers,

Mr. MaoarTNEY: Don’t forget the special
appropriation undeér the special provisions of
the: special "Audit: Act:

The  PREMIER: But the Federal Parlig.

~ment had no: power to alter the Federal Con-
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stitution. * No special’ Audit Act and no: Sur-
plus Revenue Act could enable the Pederal
Treasurer or the Federal Parliament to evade
the - Constitution.: - That: Constitution  laid
down . ‘what his revenue was and what his
expenditure. ‘was, and that the balance of his
revenue belonged to the States.

Mr. HarpacrE: Does the Constitution de-

- fine ‘“expenditure 7
The PREMIER: No.
Mr. ‘HArDACRE: That is the question.

The  PREMIER: The Government thought
the two cases exactly parallel. The Federal
Treasurer stated what his revenue was and
what' his expenditure was; and part of the
amount he stated as expenditure was money
not expended at all, but money that was paig
into a trust fund for the carrying out in the
future of purposes authorised by Parliament.
That was why the States challenged the right
of the Federal Treasurer to retain that money.

They said, * That is not expenditire at all. -

You have not spent that money at all; and it
belongs to us.”’ ' The case’ went before.the
High Court, ‘and the  whole matter furied,
not- upon ' the provisions' of the Surplus Re-
venue Act but upon what ‘censtituted expen-
diture.. ‘He was not going to attempt to quote
in extenso the judgments given by the judzes
of ‘the High' Court, because in five minutes
the Chairman would leave the chair, but here
was the point—_

o Mr. Brate: Did you get an opirion on. that;
if it is hot’ an unfair question?

The PREMIER: No. " He did not think of
an opinion:

Mr.  Bram: Did the  Treasurer geb- an
opinion?

. The TrEASURER: No. ' I have already said
so in reply to the hon. member for Barcoo.

The - PREMIER : The wholé question turned
upon: whether  the money that the Federal
Treagsurer paid: into the trust fund was ex-
penditure. - If that was expenditure, then the
States had no claim to the money.  If it was
not expenditure, then it was surplus revenus,
and the States ought to get it. - The High
Court unanimously declared that money not
actually disbursed but paid into a trust fund
was expenditure.

Mr. MAcCARTNEY: Our Audit Act
““actually and duly disbursed.”

The TREASURER: It says, .“‘which has not
‘been expended.”

Mr. MacarTNEY: No.: The Auditor-General
gives: his certificate under séction 33, ‘which
uses the words‘‘ actually and' duly disbursed.”

The PREMIER: They believed that the
cases ‘were “exactly  parallel; -and that they
might - claim - as - expenditure for last year
money which, ‘although ' not -actually  dis:
buised, was appropriated by Parliament, and
was’ put into a trust fund where it ‘could only
be used: for the purpose for which Parliament
appropriated it.. They thought that was legi-
timately: called *“expenditure,’’ as in an ace
‘count: of the revenue and expenditure for the
year. " When ' the  Auditor-General “wrote: to
the Treasurer pointing ‘out that the trans-
action was irregular, ‘the Treasurer; as had
been shown already by the correspondence
published ' by the  Auditor:General, made a
statement of the case as it appeared to him,
showing how he thought the two cases were
exactly  parallel, and giving, in addition; as
hon. members would. see,” a definition of ex-
penditure from- the = ¢“Encyclopedia : of Ac-
counting,” which was not a legal’ document
like the law reports’ of the High Court, but
which showed the wider meaning that might

says
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be legitimately given fo the term  ‘‘ expendi-
ture”’ in‘dealing’ with accounts, and which
was in: strict accordance with the judgment
of ‘every oné of the judges of the High Court.
My, MACARTNEY : As defined in a particular
statute. : .
The PREMIER: Noj; he was dealing with

“their judgment as ‘to the larger meaning of

the word. ~ Upon receipt of: that letter, the
Auditor-General was of opinion that he would
be: justified  in giving the Treasurer a’ dis-
charge for the year.

‘Mr. LeNNON: He' 'was overborne—he was
overridder.

The PREMIER: Why should the Auditor-
General be overborne? It was not fair to
say so.. He was not saying it was not fair to
say it of the Government, but it was not fair
to the Auditor-General.
h.Mr. Muzran: That letter was not fair to

im. :

The PREMIER: The Auditor-General was
of opinion that the explanation of the Trea-
surer. justified him in giving him a discharge =
for the year. Now, that covered the whole
thing.  When the Hon.  the Treasurer de-
livered his". Financial - Statement, before the
House knew anything about the matter,. he
gave a- detailed account of what he had done
and why he had done’it. i

M. LanNon: And I'told the Treasurer that
it-should have gone into lapsed votes.

The PREMIER: Then  the hon. member
was . wrong when he told the Treasurer that.
He (Mr. Kidston) thought the Treasurer acted
strictly in- accordance  with ‘the Constitution,
as they ~understood. it. " The  case was on
exactly all-fours: with the Federal case.

Mr. MurpHY: Why didn’t you do: as. Mr,
Philp did, and submit the matter to a. lead-
ing barrister, and ‘give hon. members: that
opinion ?

The PREMIER: Because the case seemed
so simple to him then, and it seemed: simple to
him now! )

Mz, Murpay: That was a very. simple
solution of the difficulty—to do as 1 suggest.

The PREMIER: If any hon. member: had
any doubt in his own mind, it was for him to
go to a lawyer. Right or wrong, he had no
doubt that he could get a lawyer on the other
side, if the hon. gentleman trotted out one.

Myr. MurpHY: I am not trotting out one:
Your party trotted out a clever lawyer.” :

The PREMIER: The Government, acting:
ag they believed rightly, took the action which:
was endorsed by the Auditor-General;, and, so
far as’ he knew, that completed the whole
transaction for the year.: :

Mr: MurpHY: Mr. Acting Chairman,—I call
your attention to the clock. (Laughter:) -

At 10.30 p.m.; :

The ACTING CHAIRMAN': In accordance
with the Sessional Order, it is now my duty
to leave the chair, and report progress to the
House.

The House tesumed. . The AcTiNG CHAIR-
MAN reported progress; and obtained leave to
sit again on Tuesday next.

ADJOURNMENT.

The PREMIER: I move that the House do
now ‘adjourn. ‘After the third reading of the
State Kducation ' Acts. Amendment Bill *on
Tuesday; which: - should be only a formal
matter, we will take the second reading of the
Local Authorities Bill.

Mr. MuLran: Still up to your old jokes.

The PREMIER : I am not going to start a
discussion. I would just like to say that I-
hope that by Thursday next we may be able

Hon. W. Kidston.}
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to dispose of ‘the T.ocal Authorities Bill—the
second reading and Committee stages. It is a
short Bill,iand I would like to do that.

My, MurpHY : “You have been decent to-
night:

Mr. LENNON: I think that it is just as
well the: House should adjourn, but I would
like to say that, on the attitude of the Chief
Secretary, I think it is quite possible that we
may be able to get through the second reading
of . the Local Authorities Bill  in the  time
specified. - (Hear, hear!) - The attitude the
hon. - gentleman has ‘assumed to-day is: very
much more agreeable to the House than that
adopted on former oecasions in regard to men-
sures that he wanted to bludgeon through the
House. - Iam sorry: that fime prevented me
from ‘replying :to ‘the ‘remarks of the hon.
gentleman: in regard to the hole the Treasury
have got themselves into: However, I must
reserve any ¢omments T have to make on that
until the opportunity is again affcrded me.

Question put and passed.

The House adjourned at twenty-six minutes
to. 11-o’clock:






